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We think our terrific

start to the New Year

should be a good

barometer of our
overall prospects
in fiscal 2008.

To QurFriends and Shareholders

Fiscal 2007 was marked by a
number of notable achievements at
Semitoéf. These included continued
market share gains for our Raider
platform in the areas of copper
plating for next generation memaory
chips aéd cleaning applications for
front-ent-of-line wafer processing.
While wp were not immune to a
first-half siowdown in customer
capital épending, we rebounded
during the third and fourth quarters
with much improved bookings
performances. With the first quarter
of fiscal 2008 now in the books, we
have redorted three straight pericds
of ordergrowth,

As cugtomer investments in wafer
processtpg tools began 1o decline in
early 2007, our efforts to capture
next gerferation process-of-record
opportudities were meeting with real
success, particularly in the memory
seclor, where we achisved POR
breakthréughs with a number of the
world’s 19ading memory device
manufacfurers. Last year in this
report, | iold you we expected
increased demand for our tools from

the membry space, which is
continually working to develop

smalier, faster and increasingly
complex chips for use in modern
electronics. That demand is meeting
expactations, and Semitocl has
been capturing a sizeable share of
the opportunities. During fiscal
2007, six new memory fabs turned
to our Raider platform tc address
either development or production
related applications,

Our 2007 performance was
especially strong in Asia, where we
have focused much of our attention
and sflort in recent years. You may
recall that Semitool did not have a
direct presence in China ¢r Taiwan
just four years ago, but by the
fourth fiscal quarter of 2007, Asia
accounted for more than 40 percent
ot our tool bookings. This success
reflects the performance, yield and
cost of ownership bensfits our
Raider is delivering to the fabs. It
als¢ is indicative of a very talented
management team focused on
achieving its performance
abjectives.

We think our terrific start to the
New Year should be a good
barometer of our overall prospects
in fiscal 2008. Qur Q1 bookings of

Raymon F. Thompson
Chaiman of the Board and
Chigf Executive Officer

approximately $64 million were an
improvement of more than 40
percent versus last year's first
quarter. On top of that, we recently
entered a joint development project
with a major Asian foundry working
on sub-32 nanometer technologies
for both FEOL and BOEL cleaning;
we have introduced our next-
generation Raider capable of
processing more than 350 wafers
per hour; and we are pursuing
new opportunities in porous silicon
and the solar industry. These
Initiatives are laying the foundation
for future growth.

With all of this activity, 2008
is shaping up to be another
successiul year at Semitool,
Thank you for your continued
support, and please stay tuned.

Sincarely,

Raymon F. Thompson
Chairman of the Board
and Chiel Executive Officer




Company Profile

Semitool designs, manufacturas and supports highly-sophisticated equipment used In the fabrication of semiconductor
devices. Qur primary suites of squipment include elactrochemical deposition systams for electroplating copper. solder

and other metals; surface preparation systems for cleaning, stripping and etching silicon wafers; and water container

i cleaning systems. Our equipment is used in semiconductor fabrication front-end and back-end processes, including

manufacturers worldwide.

is available at http://www.samitool.com,

Financlal Highlights

Year Ended September 30,

waler level peckaeging. Semitool's customers include many of the major semiconductor device and weler level packaging

|
‘ Semiltool, Inc., a Montana corporation, was foundsed in 1979 and is headguartered in Kalispa!l, Montana. We provide
‘ worldwide customer sales and support from multiple locations in the United States, Europe and Asia. The Company's

stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Markel undar the symbo! SMTL. Additiona! information about the Company

{in Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2007 2008 2005 2004 2003
Statemont of Operations Data

Net sales $215,220  $243.,218 $190,373 $139,627  $117,048
Gross profit (1} 101,491 112,919 96,969 77,421 35,254
Income (loss) from operations 2,633 14,770 10,714 10,876 (35,269)
Net income (loss) 5,231 0,836 10,050 7,354 (21,151)
Diluted earnings (loss} per share 0.18 0.31 0.35 0.25 {0.74)
Balance Sheet Data

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities $ 16,090 $ 17,347 $ 7,032 $ 22,354 $ 27,835
Working capital {1} 123,370 114,863 83,620 78,287 73,108
Total assets 226,329 232,398 178,680 181,300 138,774
Short-term debt 1,158 3,680 292 225 228
Long-term debt and capital leases 10,027 4,699 3111 2,089 2,322
Shareholders’ equity (2) 853 161,024 120,421 109,843 100,677

(1) In the feurth quarter of fiscal 2003, we wrote down inventory by $18.1 mitllon primarily due to a changs in forecasted demand for certain of our products
due to the successiul Introduction of our new Raidar plotiorm, in the fourth quarter of flscat 2007, we wrote down Inventory by spproximately $3.0 milion
primarily dus to product anhancaments that changed the usage of certaln component parts, making them obsoleta.

(2) In conjunction with an equity offering of common stock in Decembier 2005, the Company issued three million shares of common stock resutiing In

approximately $28,0 milion in net cash procesds.

Cover photo: Double Rainbow ovar Swiftcurrent River in Glacicr National Park, Montana.
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PART |

Introduction ~ Forward-Looking Statements

Statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K which are not purely historicai facts are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Acl of 1934, These forward-looking statements are based on management’s estimates, projeclions and
assumptions thal underiie such stalements al the time they are made. Forward-looking statements in the discussion of our
business, propsriies and legal matters include, without limitation, stalements regarding:

« trends in the semiconductor industry that are driving growth for our products, including the adoption of single wafer
300mm processing, adoption of copper as an interconnect material, spray processing supplanting immersion
technologies and the continued expansion of the wafer level packaging market,

« Semitool’s solutions and strategies for electrachemical deposition, surface preparation and wafer level packaging,

including our intent to continue investing in research and development to maintain and expand our position as a

technology leader in those markets,

our plan to davelop new technologies, including porous silicon, 3-D packaging, wafer thinning and sofar markeat

applications for our processes and equipment, to enable us to enter emerging markets and provide innovative solutions,

our plan to leverage our Raider platform with both our current and potential new customers and in new markets and our
expectation lhat revenue from our Raider platform will continue to account fof a significant portion of our revenue,

our plan to enhance our relationships with our major customers and identify opportunities to develop simitar

ralationships with other semiconductor davice manufacturers,

our intent to expand our sales and support organization to broaden customer reach, particularly in Asia, and the

potential for growth in those markets,

our anticipation of stronger sales in the Asian market in fiscal 2008, relative to fiscal 2007,

the performance and acceptance of our products, including the continued technological improvement of our (ools and

the success of our Raider platform,

manufacturing strategy, incluging our vertical manufacturing structure and manufacturing strategles for increasing )

performancs reliability and yields while reducing the cost of ownership of our tools,

competition, including our ability to compete favorably with companies significantly larger than we are,

our afforts to protect our intellsctual propery portfolio and intent to continue to file patenl applications to protect that

intellectual property,

» the adequacy of our existing manufacturing facilities,

+ the ability to maintain our worldwide sales, service and cuslomer support organizations, and

» the impact of litigation on our business, including patent disputes.

Cther forward-looking statements made below under tha heading “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere include stalements relating to:

accounting policies and estimates and the effects of new accounting standards,

research and development expenses, including expected fluctuations in such expenses in absolute dollar amounts and
as a percantage of net sales, and our expectation of continued funding of research and development to attain
technology leadership in our industry,

the expectation that our transition to a direct sales and service presence In Asia will improve our profitability,

estimales of capital expenditures and the sufficiency of funds and sources of financing to make expected capital
expenditures through fiscal 2008,

inventory managsment,

the sufficiency of funds and the abllity to finance activities, including sources of liquidity and the availability of the funds
for borrowing under the debt covenants contained in our revolving credit line,

our expectalion that existing debt financing arrangements and cash fiows generated from operating aclivities will be
sufficient to fund operations and ptanned capital expenditures through fiscal 2008, and

our expectation that, if additional financial resources are required, we will have the ability to issue sacurities from our
sheff registration statement, issue other financial instruments or bormow money.

Management cautions that forward-locking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual
results to differ materially from those projected in such forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties are
detailed under the heading “Risk Factors™ and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation 10
update forward-looking statements to raflact subsequent events, changed circumstances, or the cccurrence of unanlicipated
events.




item 1. Business
Overview

We design, manufacture, install and service highly-engineered equipment for use in the fabrication of semiconduclor
devices. Qur products are focused on the wet chemical process steps in integrated circuil, or IC, manufacturing and include
systems for wafter surface preparation and electrochemical deposilion, or ECO, applications. Qur surface preparation
systems are designed for Front End of Line (FEOL), Back End of Lina (BEOL) and wafer level packaging of ICs processes.
Our single wafer FEOL surface praparation systems are used for photoresist stripping, post etch and pre-diffusion cleans.
Our BEOL surface preparation systems are used for polymer removal and packaging applications. Our ECD systems are
used to plate copper and other metals, which are used for the IC's internal wiring, or interconnects; to plate solder and lsad
free solder bumps for wafer level packaging applications; and to plate other metals for various semiconductor and related
applications. Also, our surface preparation systems are used for cleaning and etching processes for wafer leve! packeging.
Our primary product for all of these processes is the Raider platform, which is a multi-chamber single wafer tool, Our
products address crilical applications within the semiconducter manufacturing process, and help enable our custorners to
manufacture more advanced semiconductor devices that feature higher levels of performance. Tha fabrication of
semiconductor devices typically requires several hundred manufacturing steps, with the number of steps continuing to
increasa for advanced devices. Due to the breadth of our product portfolic and advanced technology capabilities, our
solutions address over 150 of these manufacturing steps.

Semitool, Inc., a Montana corporation, was founded in 1979 and is headquartered in Kalispell, Montana. Our mailing
address is 655 West Reserve Drive, Kalispell, MT 59901 and our telephone number is 406-752-2107, Additional information
about the Company is available on our Web site at hittp://www.semitool.com. On our lnvestor Relations page on ocur Web site,
we posl the {ollowing filings as soon as practicable afler thoy are electronically filed with or fumished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC): our annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on
Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports filed or fumished pursuant to Sections 13(a) or 15(d} of the Securitles
Exchange Act of 1934. All such filings on our own Investor Relations web page are available to be viewed free of charge.
Information contained on our Wab site is not part of this annual report on Form 10-K or our other filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, Qur Form 10-K and other filings also are available at the Securities and Exchange Commission's
Web site at hitp:/fiwww.sec.gov. Any materials the Company files with the SEC may be read and copied at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Streel, NE, Washington, DC 20549. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room is
available by calling the SEC al 1-800-SEC-0330.

Industry Background

Growth in the semiconductor industry is driven by Lhe global demand for semiconductor devices that are incorporated in
an ever increasing array of electronics devices such as personal computers, network servers, digital televisions, audio
systems including MP3 players, video game players, cellular phones, GPS devices and digital cameras to name a few. The
markel for semiconductor equipment used to fabricate semiconductor devices has also experienced significant growth, driven
by greater demand for, and increasingly higher performance of, semiconductor devices. Though subject to a high degree of
cydicality due to periods of excess supply or demand for semiconductor equipment, semiconductor devices and
semiconductor fab capacity utilization, the market for semiconductor equipment is characterized by rapid technological
development and product innovation. As a result, to meet new technoiogical advancements, semiconductor device
manufacturers may purchase new semiconductor equipment despite the timing of the market cycle.

Semiconductor Manufacturing Process Overview

Semiconductor devices can consist of over a billion microscopic transistors and other components that electronically
store information and allow the execution of Instructions used to operate electronic devices. Fabrication of ICs involves
hundreds of complex and repefitive process steps, involving an array of sophisticated manufacturing equipment, chemical
media, and materals. The fabrication process includes, among others, the deposition of multiple layers of dielectric or
insutating films and electrically conducting metal films. After the deposition of each film layer, the fabrication process
continues with repeated cleaning, stripping and elching processes o prepare the surface for the next process. When
completed, the wafaer may contain several hundred ICs, which are traditionally then separated by a dicing process. The ICs
are then packaged by connecting them to pins using metal wire contacts and encapsutating the ICs in a polymer. In an effort
to reducs the size of packaged ICs, some manufacturers are using newer wafer level packaging, which allows for attaching
each IC's package before dicing. Once diced, the entire packaged semiconductor device can then be placed into an
electronic product, such as a cellular phone or other electronic device.

Cleaning, stripping, etching or otherwise preparing the wafer surface are steps repeated throughout the semiconductor
fabrication process as well as in the wafer level packaging process. These processes are important, since the integrity of the
next process depends on the effectiveness of prior cleaning, stripping, or etching steps. Immersion and spray are two
fundamental means by which surface preparation wet process steps are performed. Immersion processes, or wel benches,
are a series of liquid-filled tanks in which wafers are immersed. The wafers are transported from a wel chemical tank to
another tank by robots or human operators, Spray delivery systems subject wafers to sequential spray applications of
chemicals inside an enclosed process chamber, where the chemical is brought to the wafers which are spinning on axis,
Spray sysiems can be configured to process wafers in a batch or single-wafer mode. Single-wafer processor systems can
provide a combination of spray and immersion processes.




An IC's interconnect wiring establishas the connections between the |C's transistors and external devices.
Interconnects are formed by the deposition of metal film layers, such as copper, inta trenches and vias on the surface of a
wafer. The deposition step occurs numerous times throughout the manufacluring process, with advanced ICs possessing
seven or more metal film layers. As device dimensions continue to shrink, the connections between transistors add
noticeably more delay to IC processing speeds, due to the intrinsic resistance and capacitance of the interconnect material.
Copper is the materiai of choice in such situations and practically all 300mm fabs use copper plating equipment. However,
copper, unlike aluminum, is difficult to handle and must be kept from direct contact with the silicon wafer as it will diffuse into
the silicon. This will ruin the devices on the wafer and could potentially contaminate an entire fab. As a result, copper-based
manufacturing requires more critical surface preparation steps and special processing techniques to provide complete
isolation of the copper material.

Trends in Semiconductor Manufacturing

There are several key trends in the semiconductor manufacturing industry driving growth in demand for wafer surface
preparation, ECD and other advanced semiconductor aquipment;

Smaller Device Features for Lower Cost and Higher Performance. Semiconductor devices follow Moore’s Law which
states that approximately every two years the amount of transistors on a device doubles giving it twice the power in the same
space. The continuing trend towards more advanced electronics applications continues the industry's transition to smalier
device features, enabling lower cost, as mora ICs can be fabricated on each wafer. As the industry moves to 45 nanometer
{eature sizes and below, the IC fabrication process becomes significantly more complex, requiring more stringent
manufacturing specifications and lower acceptable margins of error. [n particular, the fabrication process becomes more
susceptible to ever smaller particles, requiring the use of more advanced surface preparation equipment. Also,
manufacturing smaller IC interconnects often requires the use of equipment specifically designed for copper processing.

New Malerials to Fabricate More Advanced Semiconductor Devices. The need to fabricate increasingty advanced
semiconductor devices has led to more complex manufacturing processes that use new materials, such as low-k dielactrics
and copper lo form an IC's interconnect wiring. The use of copper, in particular, presents significant processing cheallenges 1o
prevent copper contamination measured in parts per billion at the atomic love!. To address these challenges, dedicated
processes have been developed 1o provide batter isolation of copper materials on the water, including dual-damascens,
barier layer formation, and new cleaning processes to remove unwanted copper. These complex, dedicated processes
require the use of equipment for the precise deposition of copper material. Additionally, the introduction of new materials
requires a higher number of surface preparation steps, as well as more advanced deaning processes that are tailored to
handle these new materials.

Increassd Use of 300mm Wafers to Reduce Manufacturing Costs. Leading semiconductor device manufacturers are
investing in 300mm wafer fabs. The 125% more surface area of 300mm compared to 200mm wafers has led to higher
manufaciuring efficiency and lower cost per IC dua to the economies of scale that IC manufacturers achieve by processing
additional die per wafer. Processing a larger surface area requires an additional level of contro! and precision, which
necessitates the purchase of semiconducter equipment that is specifically targeted for the processing of 300mm wafers.

Move to Single-Wafer Processing Technologies for Enhanced Surface Preparation. The industry shiff towards smaller
davice dimensions, new materials and 300mm wafer processing has driven the need for more advanced surface preparation
technologies and process equipment. In particular, 300mm is causing a move to single-wafer processing as the process can
be contratled mora precisely compared lo wet bench technology. For example, single-wafer spray processing is increasingly
being used inslead of wet benches due to ils greater process contrel, reduced footprint, reduced manutacturing cycle tims,
reduced chemical consumption and now greater throughput, Fab BEOL processes, where the interconnect wiring is placed
on the wafer, have already made the transition from being a primarily batch process 10 a single water process. Currently,
FEOL processes, which fabricata tha devicas' transistors, are starting to transition from batch to single wafer,

Wafer Leval and Other Advanced Packaging Enable Smaller Portable Products. New packaging technologies,
including water level packaging, are being developad by the Industry for the manufacture of smaller portable products such as
GPS devices, MP3 players, mobile phones and radio frequency identification, or RFID tags. Advanced packaging is an
enabling technology for the semiconductor industry, as it allows the integralion of more computing and information processing
pawer in a smaller space than conventional packaging technology. Advanced packaging uses fabrication processes similar
to IC fabrication and Includes, among others, ECD for connective solder or gold bumps, photoresist stripping and under-bump
metal etching. The packaging method allows for more efficient 3-D device mounting, or chip stacking, to further reduce the
device's footprint.

Emerging Nead for Thinned Walers and Chip Stacking Driven by the Demand for Smaller Portable Devices. The
desire for smallar, lighter and more power efficient devices has led to the need for lhinning the device prior to packaging.
Another emerging lrend is 3-D device stacking for more functionality in a smaller space.



Semitool’s Solution

We are a leading provider of wet chemical processing equipment, largeting wafer surface preparation and ECD plaling
applications. As the semiconductor manufacturing process increases in complexity and production parameters bacome even
maore stringent, semiconductor manufacturers increasingly rely upon manufacturers of semiconductor equipment fo achieve
improved process control, provide a smaller equipment footprint and lower the cost of ownarship of their manufacturing
processes. Our solutions address critical applications within the semiconductor manufacturing procaess, and enable our
customers to manufacture more advanced semiconducior devices that foature higher levels of parformance. Key elements of
our solution include:

Technology Leadership. We are able to leverage our extensive expertise in wet chemical processing and over 28
years of experience building and supporting production-proven semiconducter manufacturing equipment. We utilize
advanced modeling techniques in the design of our process chambers to address an increasingly complex manufacturing
process. Wa have a strong intellectual property portfofic with 344 U.S. patents issued and approximatsly 182 U.S. patents
pending.

Comprehensive Product Portfolio. We provide a broad suite of advanced, highly-engineered, innovative processing
chambers that include surface preparalion and ECD equipment. These chambers are incorporated into our single wafer
platform and into our batch processing tools. We design a varigty of chambers to optimize performance of each of the
different processes.

Raider Platform. Qur Raider platferm is a high-precision, mufti-chamber, single-wafer platform that supports surface
preparation and ECD applications. Our proprietary platform is configured in a linear design, coupled with our own robotic
tachnolegy, alfowing for up to 14 interchangeable process chambers. The Raider platform also features no-teach robot
technology which results in reduced installation and maintenance costs.

Vertically-Integrated Manufacturing and Design Capabilities. Our manufaciuring operations are selectively vertically-
integrated to Include metals and plastics fabricalion and finishing capabilities, componant manufacturing and final product test
and assembly and extensive product development capabilities. Our facilities feature high-volume manufaciuring lines that
provide short lead time delivery of our products. In addition, we perform product development and prototyping intemally. This
strategy reduces our products’ ime to market and helps lower our design and manufacturing costs.

Strategy

Our objective is lo ba the leading worldwide provider of wet chemical processing equipment, targeting wafer surface
preparation and ECD applications. To achieve this goal, we are pursuing the following strategies:

Target Innoveative, High-Margin, High-Growth Opportunities with Differentiated Products. Our strategy Is to be the first
to enter new, high-growth markets with differentiated products. This has provided us with early market and tachnology
laadership and enabled us to achieve strong gross margins. For example, wa were among the first to target the rapidly-
growing waler level packaging and ECD markets.

Maintain and Expand Technology Leadership. We intend to continue investing in research and development to
maintain and expand our posilion as a technelogy leader in surface preparation and ECD. Our goal is to deliver leading-edge
technical innovation to our customers by focusing on performance, improved system reliability, high throughput, yield
enhancement and a low cost of ownership. Wa plan to develop new technologies, such as porous siicon and solar
applications, to enable us to enter amerging markets and provide innovalive solutions to meet customer needs.

Leverage our Raider Piatform to Further Penetrate New Customer and Market Opportunities. Our Raider platform
features proprietary surface preparation, ECD, and wafer handling technologias. Wa continue o enhance the capabilities of
our Raider platform and thus broadan its customer appeal by expanding its pertfolio of wet chemical processing capabilities.
We plan to leverage our Raider platform with both our current and potential new customers, in our existing markels, as well
as in new markels. New Raider developments will provide a significant throughput advantage with a reduced footprint
compared to batch processing technology.

integrate Dasign and Manufacturing Expertise. Our sirategy is one of close integration of design and manufacturing,
coupled wilh selective vertical manufacturing to achieve inngvalive solutions, cost and quality advantagas and to reduce the
time to markel for new products and product enhancements. We believe that the close coordination of our engineering and
manufacturing teams provides us with an advantage in developing new products as well as improving the dasign of our
current products to increase performance reliability and manufacturing yields while reducing costs. Additionally, our control
over selective critical components reduces our dependence on component suppliers.




Leverage Strategic Relationships. For over 28 years, we have focused on satisfying the needs of worldwide
semiconductor devica manufacturers and establishing long-term relationships with our customers. We work with select
customers at the concept and design stages to identify and respond lo their requests for current and future generations of
products. These close working refationships allow us to understand and address the performance and cost expectations of
our customers. We plan to enhance our relationships with our major customers and identify opportunities to develop simitar
relationships with additional semiconductor device manufacturers.

Expand Our Asian Market Prasence. During the past several years we have expanded our presence in Asla. We
currently have sales organizations in Singapors, Japan, Taiwan, Korea and China, and wa intend to continue to expand our
sales and applications supporl organization to broaden our customer reach. We believe thal the Asia region has the potential
for additional significant long-term growth, Qur sales, marketing and service strategy is to expand our installed base of
equipment with existing and potential new customers in these regions.

Technology

Wo are a leader in the design, development and manufacturing of advanced, wel chemical processing equipment. We
leverage our years of experience in designing and manufacluring production-proven semiconductor manufacturing equipment
to daliver solutions that enable the fabrication of increasingly higher performance semiconductor devices. Wa have several
key technological core competencies, including advanced computational modeling, and have assembled a development team
with extensive engineering and medaling expertise to capitalize on these competencies.

Our surface preparation systems incorporate our innovative cleaning tlechnology, such as our new HiDRIS cleaning
chamber used to remove high dose ion implant photo-resist from the surface of the wafer. We are developing porous silicon
chambers for potential use in nano-technology and solar applications.

For electroplating applications, we leverage our advanced techniques in the design of our proprietary copper pellet
anode assemblies and membrane technology to provide low cost copper to the flash and memory device markets. Our
multiple anode assemblies enabls radially controlled current density during the electroplating process, leading to & more
controllable procass for depositing copper fitm on the surface of a wafer allowing the optimal match of the copper film (o the
planarization characteristics of the downstream CMP process step.

Products

Our broad product suite of innovative processing systems leveragas our core wet chemical processing expertise and
our years of experence in manufacturing and supporting production-proven semiconductor manufacturing equipment. Our
primary wet chemical processing solutions are multi-chamber single-wafer and batch cleaning, stripping and etching
equipment and single-water plating equipmant, primarity for the deposilicn of copper, lead or lead-free solder. We operate in
one segment with net saes of $215.2 million, $243.2 million and $190.4 million for (iscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Surface Proparation Products

Our mutti-chamber, single-wafer processing systams for wel cleaning, stripping and etching are designed with a linear
arrangement of the processing chambers for high volume production and, like our ECD chambers, utilize the Raider platform.
The platform madularity reduces downtime and increases wafer throughput providing the customer with an overall lower cost
of ownership. These systams are available lo accommodate 200mm and 300mm wafer sizes. Selling prices for these single
wafer surface preparation products range from $700,000 to $4.0 million.

Our batch systems for wet cleaning, stripping and etching applications include semi- and fully-automaled systems and
usae our proprietary spray technology to deliver chemicals, deionized water and gases to the wafer surface in an enclosed
chamber. The wafers are rolated, on axis, and are showered by a sequenced spray of chemicals followed by heated nitrogen
gas to dry the wafers. This technology enables precise and uniform application of process chemicals and snhances process
refiability and cost effectiveness through reduced parlicle contamination and process cycle time. Our cost-effective ozone
and deionized water-based cleaning process, called HydrOzone, is avaitable on selected systems. This environmentally
friendly process can replace tradilional processes using sutfuric acid and other hazardous chemicals resulling in lower costs,
reduced process cycle lime, reduced water consumption, and can minimize chemicat disposal costs. These systems ara
available to accommodate 150mm, 200mm and 300mm wafer sizes in up to 50 wafer batches. Selling prices for these
systems range from under $20,000 to $2.9 million.




RAIDER 5P

Our Raider platform is a high-precision, multi-chamber, singls-wafer platform that supports surface preparation
applications. Our proprietary platform is configured in a linear design, coupled with our robotic technology, allowing for up to
14 interchangeable process chambers. The Raider platform also features Nano-Megs cleaning capability, which uses
megasonic energy o delicately but effectively clean the wafers, combined with the ability to use the single-wafer version of
our HydrQzone or FluorOzone processes. The flexibility of its linear design makes it one of the most versatile wet cleaning,
stripping and etching platforms in the industry. The tool can be equipped with our proprietary Capsule chambers, which
allows side-selectable processing. [n addition, the system can also be equipped with spray, immersion, megasonic, or vapor
process chambers. Applications include wafer backside, bevel-edge clean for removal of unwanted copper and olher
contaminates, post-elch polymer ramoval, critical pre-deposition cleans, metal etching and FEQL cleans. The Raider SP is
avallable to accommodate 200mm and 300mm wafer sizes.

SPECTRUM

The Spectrum is an advanced automated batch processing system for cleaning, stripping and elching applications. Its
compact modular design features high throughput, fiexible process formats and precise control for low cost of ownership. In
addition to our proprietary spray processing modules, the Speclrum can be equipped with immersion and surface tension
gradient dry capabilities. It can be configured to use either comosives, solvents or our proprietary HydrOzone-based
processes for polymer removal, photoresist strip and critical cleaning applications. The Spectrum is available to
accommodate beth 200mm and 300mm wafer sizes.

Spray Acid Tool (SAT), Spray Solvent Tool (SST}), Spin Rinser/Dryer (SRD}), SCEPTER

The SAT and SST are manually loaded semi-automated systems for performing sequential processing of 25 wafers
per spray process chamber. They are designed for wafer processing using high purity acidic, atkaline and solvent based
chemistries lo achiave a wide amay of cleaning, stripping and etching applications. These systems can be equipped with up
to three 200mm process chambers and are ideal for medium to low production volumes and research and development
activity. The SRD is a high efficiency cleaning system utilizing deionized water to remove water-soluble contaminants,
chemical residue and particulate matter. |t is available to accommodate waler sizes up to 300mm in diameter. The Scepter
series is an advancement of these semi-automated products that offers double the productivity of the 25 wafer capacity tools
by processing 50 wafers at a time in nearly the same system footprint. The Scepter can process wafer sizes up to 200mm in
diameter.

Elactrochemical Daposition Systems

Ouwr single-wafer ECD systems incorporate proprietary electroplating technology on a multi-chamber platform that
processes one wafer per chamber. ECD applications include copper intercannect for logic and memory ICs, gold bumps for
high speed communication ICs, lead and lead-free solder bumps for advanced wafer level packaging and through silicon via
plating for 3-O chip stacking applications. Our leading single-wafer design is modular, with process chambers arranged In 8
linear orientation, providing flexibility in system configuration. These systems generally include a combination of ECD and
surface preparation process chambers to address a customer's spacific application. These systams are available lo
accommodale wafer diameters from 100mm to 300mm and can be scaled for customers’ capacity requirements. Selling
prices of these systems typically range from approximately $800,000 to $4.2 million.

RAIDER ECD

The Raider ECD is an automated, single-wafer processor for high volume ECD. The specific configuration of its
multiple processing chambers determines which semiconductor IC and advanced packaging markets the Raider ECD serves,
For copper interconnect, several process steps can be integrated onto a single system such as ECD seed tayer
enhancement, ECD plating fill, wafer backside clean, bevel-edge clean, film thickness metrology and rapid therma! anneal.
Our proprietary concentric anode chamber design, coupled with our model-based plating controller, allows the user to
oplimize plating profiles for downstream operations such as better matching of film characteristics to planarization (CMP)
aequipment, resulting in yield CMP improvements and reducing expensive CMP costs. QOur cleaning chambers, which are also
used in our Raider $P, are integrated into the too! for beveledge and backside copper cleaning lo eliminate copper
contamination. The modularity of the platform provides our customers with the flexibility to configure the chamber mix to meet
their specific needs. Additionally, our Advanced Chemical Management System, or ACMS, an automated electroplating bath
control unit, can be fully integrated with the Raidar ECD systems. The ACMS maintains the dasired chemical balance in the
plating baths by automalically analyzing and replenishing the chemical constituents using our proprietary technolegy and
typically services two ECD systems. The primary applications for the Raider ECD are copper, gold, nickel, platinum and
solder depositions. It is available to accommodate 200mm and 300mm wafer sizes.




Customers, Sales and Marketing

Our customers include leading global semiconductor manufacturers. The following is a represenative list of our
largest customars in fiscal 2007:

Advanced Micro Devices Hitachi Sony

Amkor Infingon/Qimonda Spansion

Anadigics Maxim Integrated Products STMicrcelectronics

Bosch Micron/IM Flash Taiwan Semiconductor Mfg. Co.
Casio Seagate TECH Semiconductor

Freescale Semiconductor Skyworks Texas Instruments

Grace Semiconductor United Microelectronics Corporation

Our 1op ten customers accounted for 67.8%, 54.0% and 58.2% of net sales in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2005,
respactively. Advanced Micro Devices accounted for 23.8%, 13.8% and 16.7% of net sales in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respaclively. Micron/IM Fiash accounted for 10.2% of net sales in fiscal 2007.

Intemational sales, primarily in Europe, Asia and Japan, accounted for approximately 62.5%, 62.5 % and 72.7% of net
sales for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. We have direct sales and customer support organizations located in the
United States, Europe, Japan, Singapore, Korea, Taiwan and China, and for some products, we utilize on a selective basis
both independen! representatives and distributors.

Field sarvice personnel and process engineers located in the United Slates, Europe, Japan and Asia provide warranty
service, post-warranty service and equipment installation. We also provide service and mainlenance training, as well as
process application training for our customers’ personnel, on a fee basis. Spare parts inventories are maintained in
outsourced locations throughout the world, which allows us to offer same day or overnight delivery in many instances.

Backlog and Deferred Revenue

Consolidated orders backlog was $58.9 million as of September 30, 2007 and $85.3 million in fiscal 2008, We include
in backlog those customer orders for which we have written customer authorization and for which shipment is scheduled
within the next 12 months. Orders are subject to cancellation or rescheduling by customers with limited or no cancellation
fees. During periods of downtumns in the semiconductor industry, we have experienced significant cancellations and delays.

Our deferred revenue primarily relates to equipment shipped to customers that has not been accepied by the
customer. Revenue on those shipments is recognized as sales when acceptance is received. As of September 30, 2007,
deferred revenue was $15.4 million.

As a result of systems ordered and shipped in the same quarter, possible changes in customer delivery dates,
cancellations and shipment delays, and acceptances of shipped equipment carried in deferred revenus, the backlog at any
particular date and the orders bookings for any pariicular period are not necessarily indicalive of aclual ravenue for any
succeeding period.

Manufacturing

Most of our manufacturing is conducted at our facilities located near Kalispell, Montana. Our manufacturing
operations are salaclively vartically integrated to include metals and plastics fabrication and finishing capabilities, component
parts and final product assembly, and extensive product development capabilities. Manufacturing personnel work closaly
with product development engineers to enhance manufacturability and facilitate the transition from prototype o full-scale
production. Our high-volume manufacturing lines provide responsive lead time delivery of our products. Component and
product prototyping typicaily is performed intemally, reducing the tims to market for new products and product enhancements.

in fiscal 2006 we increased our manufacturing capacity with the purchase of a 72,000 square foot facility near
Kalispell. This bullding contains our fabrication departments and provides more space for the assembly area in our main
facility. In fiscal 2006, we also completed our facility in Salzburg, Austria which has space for light manufacluring and a repair
facility. In fiscal 2007, we completed a 10,000 square foot expansion of a refurbishing facility at our Rhetech subsidiary.

Research and Development (R&D)

We beliave that timely development of products is necessary to remain compelitive in an equipment market
characterized by rapid technological change and product innovation. We devote significant resources fo programs directed at
developing new and enhanced products, as well as new applications for existing products. We maintain extensive
demonstration and process development laboratories at our facilities in Montana, including three lab areas for demonstrating,
testing and developing products. Research and development personnel work directly with customars, vendors, and research
institules to develop new processes and to design and evaluate new equipment.




Research and development, which is expensed as incurred, was approximately $27.1 million, $24.5 million and $19.7
million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respeclively. As a percentage of our net sales, these expenses represented
approximately 12.6%, 10.1% and 10.4% in each of these fiscal years, respectively. Our surface preparation research and
development efforts were focused on FEOL cleaning applications, wafer edge cleaning processes and related equipment.
ECD R&D focused on the development of a new processing chamber capable of plating copper for devices at the 32
nanometer node and below, deep via applications, direct-on-barrier plating, thin seed layer anhancement processes, porous
silicon processes and related equipment. R&D projects also included a single wafer copper annealing process.

Competition

The semiconductor equipment industry is an intensively competitive market place marked by constant technological
changa. Significant competitive factars in the semiconductor equipment and retated markets in which we compete include:
system performanca, quality and reliability, cost of using our equipment, ability 1o ship products to meet customer schedules,
timsliness and quality of tachnical support service, our success in developing new and enhanced products, pricing and
payment terms. We face substantial competition from established companies, some of which have greater financial,
marketing, technical and other resources, broader and integrated product lines, more extensive customer support capabilities,
larger sales organizations and greater installed customer bases. Our primary competitor in ECD is Novelius Systems, Inc. In
wel surface preparation applications, our competition includes Dainippon Screen Manufacturing Co., SEZ Holding, AG and
Tokyo Electron, Ltd. :

Wa belleve that we compete favorably with these manufacturers. We may also face competition from new market
entrants,

Patents and Other Intellectual Property

The semiconductor industry in general is very active in pursuing patent applications for both equipment and processes
used in the manufacture of semiconductor devicas. Patants are considered important to the protection of intelleciual property
resulting from a company’s research and development programs and are viewed as a means of gaining market agvantages
aver competilors because the industry often diferentiates competitors on the basis of technological criteria,

We place a strong emphasis on the innovative features of our products and, where available, wa generally seek patent
protection for those features. We currently hold 344 U.S. patents, seme with pending foreign counterparts, have
approximately 182 U.S, patent applications pending and intend to file addilional patent applications, as we deem appropriate.
We have had an active patent program since the Company's incaplion; consequently, Ihe duration of our patent portiolio is
staggerad due o various initial filing dates for individual patents, Our patenl portfolic is not dominated by any particular
patents. We consider the strength of the overall portfolio to be more important than the strength of any particular patent. In
fact, many patents are part of our "patent families” and il is difficult, if not impossible. to make any assessment regarding the
“materiality” of one patent in that family over another. Even if a patent is not used offensively to prevent a competitor from
practicing the same art, it may still provide a deterrent against a competitor’s potential patent infringement claim against us.

Employees

As of September 30, 2007, we had 1,157 {ufl-time and temporary employaes worldwide. Qur employees are not
represented by a labor union, and we have never experienced a work stoppage of strike. We consider our employes
relations to be good.
Environmental Matters

We are subject to a varlety of governmental regulations related to the discharge or disposal of toxic, volatite or
otherwise hazardous waste. Qur compliance with federal, state and loca! provisions regulating the discharge of materials into

the environment, and the remedial actions we have taken with respect to environmental regulations, have not had, and are
not expected to have, a material effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Pogition
Raymon F, Thompson {1) 66 Chairman of the Board and Chief Exscutive Offtcer
Larry E. Murphy (2) 48  President and Chief Operating Officer
Timothy C. Dodkin (3) 58 Executive Vice President
Larry A. Viano (4) 53  Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
James L. Wright (5) 44  Vice President, Manufacturing
Richard C. Hegger (6) 51 General Counse!, Secretary

(1) Raymon F. Thornpson founded Semitool in 1979 and serves as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. in 1879, Mr.
Thompson designed, patented and introduced the first on-axis spin rinser/dryer for the semiconductor industry.

(2) Lamy E. Murphy joined us in May 2004 as our Chief Operating Officer and has served as our President since April 2005,
Prior lo joining us, Mr. Murphy worked for 15 years at Tosoh SMD, Inc., 8 U.S. subsidiary of Tosoh Corporation
headguartared in Tokyo, Japan. Mr. Murphy was Tosoh SMD's Prasidant and Chief Executive Officer, as well as Chairman
of their Taiwanese, Korean and Singapore subsidiaries. Previously at Tosch SMD, he held severa!l executive positions,
including Chief Operating Officer, Vice Prasident of Sales and Marketing and Global Sales Manager.

(3) Timothy C. Dodkin has been employed by us since 1985 and has served on qur Board of Direclors since 1998, Mr.
Dodkin has held a number of sales-related pasitions including Senior Vice President, Global Sales and Marketing and, since
June 2003, has served as Executive Vice President. Prior to joining us, Mr. Dodkin worked at Cambridge Instruments, a
semiconducter equipment manufacturer, for len years in national and intemnational salss.

(4) Lamy A. Viano joined us in 1985 and has held various positions with the Company since then. Mr. Viano has served as
our Vice President, Chief Financial Officer since May 2003, Ha also serves as our Principal Accounting Officer. He is &
Certified Public Accountant.

(5) James L. Wright joined us in 2003 as our Director of Operations and has served as our Vice President of Manufacturing
since March 2006. Prior to jolning us, Mr, Wright workad for eight years at Applied Malerials as a Senior Operations Manager
for the Copper, PVD and Systems Division.

{6) Richard C. Hegger joined us in 2000 as our General Counsel and has served as our Secretary since February 2005.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Hegger worked for a major international law firm and specialized in corporate transactions.
He is a graduats of Columbia University School of Law and a member of the bars of Montana, New York and Missouri.

The executive officers are elected each year by the Board of Directors to serve for a one-year term of office.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Set forth below are fisks and uncertainties that could negatively impact our business, financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows, and could cause actual results to differ materially from the results contemplated by the forward-looking
statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These risks and unceriainties could also cause our stock price to
decline.

We have incurred significant net losses in the past, our futura revenues are inherently unpredictable, and we may be
unable to maintain profitabllity.

We have incurred significant net losses in the past. Our operating rasults {for future periods are subject to numerous
uncertainties, and we cannot assure that we will be able to raintain the profitability that we achieved in the past four fiscal
years. It is possible that in future quarters our operating results will decrease from the previous quarter o7 fall below the
expectalions of securities analysts and investars. in this event, the trading price of our common stock could significantly
decline.
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Qur quarterfy operating rasults have varied in the past and will continue to vary significantly In the future, causing
volatility in our stock price.

Our quarterly operating results have varied significantly in the past and wilt continue to do so In the future, which will continue
to cause our common stock price to fluctuate in the future. Some of the factors that may influence our operating results and
subject our common stock to price and volume fluctuations include;

» changes in customer demand for our systems, which is influenced by economic conditions, technological developments in
the semiconductor industry, and the announcement or releasa of enhancements to exisling products or new product
offerings by cur competitors;

+ demand for products that use semiconductors;

* market acceptance of our systems and changes in our product offerings;

- size and timing of orders from customers;

+ customer cancellations or delays in orders, shipments, and installations;

« customer delays or rejections of final acceptance of our shipments;

» changes in average selling price and product mix;

- faflure to ship an anticipated number of systems in the quarter;

+ product development costs, including research, development, engineering and marketing expenses associaled with our
introduction of new products and product enhancements;

» sudden changes in component prices or availability;

+ manufacturing inefficlencies caused by uneven or unpredictable order patterns, reducing our gross margins;

» costs associated with protecting our inlellectual property;

» level of our fixed expenses relative to our net sales; and

« fluctuating costs associated with our internaticnal organization and international sales, including currency exchange rate
fluctuations.

During any quarter, a significant portion of our net sales may be derived from the sale of a refatively small number of high
priced systems. The selling prices of our systems range from under $20,000 to in excess of $4.2 million. Accordingly, a small
changs in the number and/or mix of tools we sell may cause significant changes in our operating results.

Variations in the amount of time it takes for our customers to accept our systems may cause our operating results to fluctuate.
Securiies and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bullstin 104 (SAB 104) "Revenue Racognition” provides guidance on
the recegnition of revenue for salas that involve contractual customer acceptance provisions and product installation
commitments. Timing of revenue recognition from the sale of new systems, sales to new customers and installation services
is subject to the length of ime required to achieve customer acceptance after shipment, which could cause our operating
results to vary from period to period.

In light of these factors and the cyclical nature cf the semiconductor industry, we expect (o continue to experience significant
fluctuations in quarterly and annual operating results. Moreovar, many of our expenses are fixed in the short-term which,
together with the need for continuad investment in research and development, marketing and customer support, limits our
ability to reduce expensas quickly in response to declines in sales. As a result, net sales could decline and harm our
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, which could cause our operating results to ba below the
public markel analysts’ or investors’ expectations and the market price of our stock could decline.

Cyclicality in the semiconductor industry and the semiconductor equipment industry has historically led to
substantial variations in demand for our products and consequently our operating results, and will continue to do
80.

Qur operating results are subject 1o significant variation due to the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry’s business
cycles, the timing, length and volatility of which are difficult to predicl. Our business depends upen the capilal spending of
semiconductor manufacturers, which, in tum, depends upon the current and anticipated market demand for semiconductors
and products using semiconductors. The semiconductor Industry has historically been cyclical because of sudden changes in
demand for semiconductors and manufacturing eapacity, including capacity utilizing the latest technology. The rate of
changes in demand, including end-user demand, is accelerating, and the effect of thase changes on us is occurring sooner,
exacerbating the volatility of these cycles. These changes have affected the timing and amounts of customers’ capital
equipment purchases and investments in new technology, and continue to affect our net sales, gross margin and results of
operations.

During downturns, the semiconductor equipment industry fypically experiences a more pronpunced percentage decrease in
revenues than the semiconductor industry. A prolonged downturn can sericusly affect our nel gales, gross margin and resuits
of operations. in addition, during downtums, Itis critical to appropriately align our cost structure with prevaliling market
conditions, to minimize the effect of such downtums on cur operations, and in particular, to continue to maintain our core
research and development programs, If we are unable to align cur cost structure in response to such downlumns on a timely
basis, or if such implementation has an adverse impact on our business, then our financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows may bg negatively affected to an even larger extent during industry downtums.
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Conversely, during an upium or periods of increasing demand for semiconductor manufacturing equipment, we may not have
sufficient manufacluring capacity and inventory to meet customer demand. During an upturn we would be unable to predict
the sustainability of a recovery, if any, andior the industry's rate of growth in such a recovery, both of which will be affected by
many factors. If we are unable to effectively manage our resources and production capacity during an industry uptum, there
could be a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Wae have experienced periods of rapid growth and decline in operating levels, and if we are not able to successfully
manage these significant fluctuations, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
significantly harmed.

We have experiencad periods of significanl growth and decline in net sales. Our nel sales decreased 11.5% from
approximately $243.2 million in fiscal 2006 1o approximately $215.2 million in fiscal 2007. However, there have been periods
of even more significant declines in net sales; for example, our net sales decreased 51.8% from approximately $256.5 miilion
for fiscal 2001 to approximately $123.7 million for fiscal 2002. In addition, our cansolidated orders backlog decreased 30.9%
from approximately $85.3 million al September 30, 2006 to $58.9 milion at September 30, 2007. If we are unabla to
affectively manage periods of rapid decline or sales growth, our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows could be significantly harmed.

Our deferred revenue and orders backlog may not result in future net sales.

Revenue recognition guidance requires thal revenue and the associated profil from the sale of newly introduced systems,
systems sales into new cuslomer environments and substantive installation obligations that are subject to contractual
customer acceptance provisions are deferred until the customer has acknowledged their acceptance of the system. If the
syslem does not meet the agreed specifications and the customer refuses to accept the system, the deferred revenue and
associated deferrad profit will not be realized and we may be required to refund any cash payments previously received from
the customer, which may harm our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Order backlog does not necessarily include all sales ngeded to achieve net revenue expeciations for a subsequent period.
We schedule the production of our systems based in part upon order backlog. Oue to possible customer changes in delivery
schedules and cancaellations of orders, our backlog at any particular date is not necessarily indicative of actual sales for any
succeeding period. In addition, while we evaluate each customer order to determine qualification for inclusion in backlog,
there can be no assurance that amounts included in backlog will ultimately result in future sales. A reduction in backiog during
any particular period, or the failure of our backiog to result in future sales, could harm our business, financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows.

Our continued high spending levels on research and development and the need 1o maintain a high level of customer
service and support may, under certain circumstances, harm our results of operations,

in order to remain competitive, we must maintain a high level of investment in research and development, marketing and
customer service while controlling operating expenses.

Our industry is characterized by the need for continued investment in research and development as well as a high level of
worldwide customer sarvice and supporl. As a result of our need to maintain spending levels in these areas, our operating
results could be materially harmed if our net sales fall below expectations. |n addition, because of our emphasis on rasearch
and development and technalogical innovation, our operating cosls may increase further in the future, which could have a
negative impact on our results of operations and cash flow in any given period.

There can be no assurance that we will have sufficient resources to continus to make a high level of investment in research
and development, marketing and customer service while controlling operating expenses or that our products will continue to
be viewed as compelitive as a result of technological advances by compelitors or changes In semiconductor processing
technology. Such competitive pressuras may necessitate significant price reductions by us of result in lost orders, which
could harm our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We depend on our key customers with which we do not have long-term contracts. Any loss, cancellation, reduction
or delay in purchases by, or faiture to collect receivables from these customers could harm our business.

Typically, we do not have long-term contracts with our customers, As a result, our agreements with our customers do not
provide any assurance of future sales. Sales are made pursuant lo purchase orders, which can be cancelled or delayed by
our customers at any time, Qur customers are not required to make minimum purchases from us, or make purchases at any
particular time; our customers are free to purchase products from our competitors; and our customers can stop purchasing
our producis at any time without penalty.
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Qur ten largest customers accounted for approximately 67.8%, 54.0% and 58.2% of net sales in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. There are a limited number of mostly large companies operating in the highly concentrated, capital intensive
semiconductor industry. Accordingly, we expect that we will continue to depend on a relatively small number of large
companies for a significant portion of our net sales. Although the composition of the group of largest customers may change
from year to year, the loss of, or a significant curtailment of purchases by, one or more of our key customers or the delay or
cancellation of a largs order could cause our net sales to decline significantly, which would harm our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows. Similarly, delays in payments by large customers could have a significant
impact on our cash flows.

Intense compatition In the markets in which we operate may adversely affect our market share and reduce demand
for our products.

We face substantial competition from established competitors, some of which have:

+ greater financial, marketing, technical and other resources;
+ broader and integrated product lines;

* more extensive customar support capabilities; and

+ larger sales organizations and customer bases.

We may also face competition from new market entrants. Our ability to compete successfully in the future depends on a
number of factars, including:

+ system performance, quality and reliability;

+ upfront price and maintenance costs of using our products;

« ability to ship products on time to meet customers’ demands;
+ limeliness and quality of technica!l support service; and

* our success in developing new and enhanced products.

Due to intense compatitive conditions in the semiconductor equipment industry, we have from time to Ume selectively
reduced prices on our systems in order to protecl our market share, and competitive pressures may necessitate further price
reductions. Periodically, our competitors announce the introduction of new products or lower prices which can affect our
customers’ decisions to purchase our systems, the prices wa can charge for our systems and the level of discounts we grant
our customers.

Moreover, there has been significant merger and acquisition activity among our competitors and potential compstitors. These
combinations may provide our competitors and potential competitors with a competitive advantage over us by enabling them
to more rapidly expand their product offerings and service capabilities to meet a broader range of customer needs. Many of
our customers and potential customers are retatively large companies that require global suppoert and service for their
semiconductor manufacturing equipment. Our larger competitors have more extensive infrastructures, which could place us
at a disadvantage whan competing for the business of global semiconductor device manufacturers.

We expect our competitors to continue to improve the design and performance of their products. We cannot assure you that
our competitors will not develop enhancements to, or future generations of, compelitive products that will offer superior price,
performance and/or cost of ownership features, or that new processes or technologies will not emerge that render our
products less competitive or cbsolete.

As a result of the substantial investment required to evaluate and select capital equipment and integrate it into a production
line, we believe that once a manufacturer has selected cerlain capital equipment from a paricular vendor, there is a tendency
for the manufacturer to rely upon that vendor to provide equipment for the spacific production line application and may seek
to rely upcn that vendor to meet other capita! equipment requirements. Accordingly, we may be at a competitive disadvaniage
for a protracted period of time with respect to a particular customer if that customer utilizes a competitor's manufacturing
equipment.

Our Raider ptatform accounts for a substantlal portion of current and anticipated sales.

We have leveraged our Raider platform o address both surface preparation and ECD applications. In fiscal year 2007, the
Raider platform accounted for approximately 76% of our tool revenues. We expect that revenus from cur Raider platform will
continue to account for a significant portion of our revenue. Accordingly, if the Raider platform were adversely affected by its
own parformance, price or total cost of ownership, or the availability, functionality and price of competing products and
technologies, that could have a malerial adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.
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Rapid technological change could make our products and inventorles obsolete or unmarketable for specific
applications.

We operate in an industry that is subject to evolving indusliry slandards, rapid technological changes, rapid changes in
customer demands and the rapid introduction of new, higher performance systems with shorter product life cycles, For
example, recent trends in semiconductor manufacturing include the move towards smaller davice features to lower cost and
improve perfomance, the use of new materials, such as copper, to achieve higher speed and parformance of an inlegrated
circuit, and the migration to 300mm diameler wafers from 200mm diameter wafers to increase productivity and reduce costs.
As a result of these and other trands in our industry, we expect to continue to make significant investments in research and
development. Although, historically, we have had adequate funds from operatlons to devole to research and development,
there can be no assurance that we will have funds avaitable, and in sufficient quantities, in the future for such research and
develcpment activities.

Introductions of new products by us or our competitors could adversely affect sales of our existing products and may cause
these existing products and related inventories to become absolele or unmarketable, or otherwise cause our customers o
defer or cancel orders for existing products. Wa may be unable to develop and introduce new products or enhancements lo
our existing products on a timely basis or in a8 manner which salisfies customer needs or achieves widespread market
acceplance. Any significant delay in releasing new systems could adversely affect our reputation, give a competitor a first-to-
market advantage or allow a competitor lo achieve greater markel share. These effects of rapid technological change could
harm our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our results of operations may suffer if we do not effectively manage our inventories or are required to write down
our inventories due to changing market demands for our products.

To achieve commercial success with our products, wo need lo manage our inventory of companent parts and finished goods
effectively to meet changing customer product and volume requirements. Some of our products and supplies, have in the
past and may in the future, become obsolete, while in inventory, due to rapidly changing customer specifications or
slowdowns in demand for existing producis ahsad of new product introductions by us or our competitors. If wa are not
successfuily able to manage our inventory, including our spare parts inventory, we may need to write off unsaleable or
obsolets inventory, which would adversaly affect our resulls of operations. For example, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007,
we wrote down inventory by approximately $3.0 million primarily due to product enhancements that changed the usage of
certain component parts, making them obsolete.

Our dependence on key suppliers could delay shipments and increase our costs.

Some components and subassemblies included in our products are obtained from a single source or a limited group of
suppliers. The loss of, or disruption in, shipments from these sole or limited source suppliers could, in the short-term,
adversely affect our business and results of operalions. Further, a significant increase in the price of one or more of these
components could harm our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Qur future success depends on international sales.

Our nel sales attributable to customers outside the United Stales as a percentage of our total nel sales were approximately
62.5%, 62.5% and 72.7% in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2005, respeclively. We expect nef sales oulside the Uniled States o
continue to represent a significant portion of our future net sales. Sales to customers outside the United States are subject to
various risks, including:

« @xposure to currency fluctuations and related derivatives used to hedge such Muctuations;
+ exposure of foreign accounts to foreign exchange translations;
» political and economic instability, including lerrorism;
« unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;
- tariffs and other market barriers;

+ potentially adverse tax consequences;

+ putbreaks of hostilities, particularly in Israel, Korea, Taiwan or China;

« difficulties in managing foreign sales representatives and distributors; and

» difficulties in staffing and managing foreign branch operations.

A substantial portion of our intemational sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. Therefore, if the U.S. dollar rises in value in
retation to foreign currencies, our systems will become more expensive to customers outside the WUnited States and less
compelitive with systems produced by competitors outside the United States. Such conditions could negatively impact our
international sales.

Although we endeavor to meet technical standards established by foreign slandards setting organizalions, there can be no
assurance thal we will be able to comply with changes in foreign standards in the future,
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Variations in the amount of time it takes for us to sell our systems may causa fluctuations In our operating results,
which could cause our stock price to decline.

Variations in the length of our sales cycles could cause our net sales, and thus our business, financial condition, results of
operafions and cash flows, lo flucluate widely from pericd to period, This variation could cause our stock price to dedline. Our
customers generally take a long time lo evaluate many of our products before committing to a purchase. We expend
significant resources educating and providing information to our prospective customers regarding the uses and benefils of our
systems. The length of time il takes us to make a sale depends upon many faclors, including:

« the eflorts of our sales force and our independent sales representatives and distributors;
+ the complexity of our customers’ fabrication processes;

« the internal technical capabifities and sophistication of the customer; and

+ capital spending by our customers.

Because of the number of factors influencing the sales cycle, the period between our inilial contact with a potential customer
and the time when we recognize revenue from our customer, if ever, varies widely in length. Our sales cycle typically ranges
from one month to two years. Occasionally our sales cycle can be even longer, panticularly with our intemational customers
and new lechnologies. The subsequent build cycle, or the time it takes us to build a product to customer specifications after
receiving an order, typically ranges from one to six months. During these cycles, we commit substantial resources to our
sales efforts in advance of receiving any revenue, and we may never receive any revenue from a customer daspite our sales
efforts.

When a customer purchases one of our systems, that customer often evaluates the performance of the system for a lengthy

period before considering the purchase of more systems. The number of additional products a customer may purchase from

us, if any, depends on many faclors, including the customar's capacity requirements. The period between a customer's initial
purchase and subsequent purchasas, if any, often varies from two to twelve months or tonger, and variations in length of this
period could cause further fluctuations in our business, financial condition, resulls of operations, cash flows, and possibly our
stock prica.

if we deliver systems with defects, our credibility may be harmed, sales and market acceptance of our systems may
decrease and we may incur liabilities assoclated with those defects.

Our systems are complex and somelimas have contained errors, defects and software bugs when introduced. If we deliver
systems with errors, defects or software bugs, our credibility and the market acceptance and sales of our systems coukd be
harmed. Further, if our systems contain errors, defects or software bugs, we may be required to expend significant capital and
resqurces {o alleviate such problems. Defects could alsec lead to commercial and/or product liability as a result of lawsuits
against us or against our customers. We have agreed to product liability indemnities. Our product and commercial liability
insurance policies currently provide only limited coverage per claim, tn the avent of a successful product liability andfor
commercial claim, we could be obligated to pay damages that may not be covered by insurance or that are significantly in
excess of our insurance limits.

Failure of our products to gain market acceptance would adversely affect our financlal condition and cur ability to
provide customer service and support.

We believe Lhal our growth prospects depend upon our ability to gain customer acceptance of our products and technology.
Market acceptance of products depends upon numerous faclors, including compatibility with existing manufacturing
processes and products, perceived advaniages over competing products and the level of customer service available to
support such products. Moreover, manufacturers often rely on a limited number of equipment vendors lo meet their
manufacturing equipment needs. As a result, market acceplance of our products may be adversely affected to the extent
potential cuslomers ulilize a competitor's manufacturing equipment. There can be no assurance thal growth in sales of new
products will continue or that we will be successful in obtaining broad markel acceptance of our systems and lechnology.

We expect lo spend a significant amount of time and resources to develop new producls and refine existing products. In light
of the long product development cycles inherent in our industry, these expenditures will be made well in advance of the
prospect of deriving revenue from the sale of any new systems. Our ability to commercially introduce and successfully market
any new products is subject to a wide variety of challenges during this development cycle, including start up delays, design
defects and other matters that could delay the introduction of these systems to the marketplace. As a result, if we do not
achieve markel acceptance of new products, we may not be able to realize sufficient sales of our systems in order to recoup
resaarch and development expenditures, The failure of any of our new products to achieve markel acceptance would harm
our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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We manufacture substantially all of our equipment at two facilities and any prolonged disruption in the operations of
elther facllity could have a material adverse effect on our net sales.

We manufacture substantially all of cur equipment in our manufacturing facilities located near Kalispell, Montana. Our
manufaciuring processes are highly complex and require sophisticated and costly equipment and a specially designed facllity.
As a result, any prolonged disruption in the operalions of either of our manufacturing facilities, whether due to technical or
labor difficutties, destruction or damage as a result of a fire or any other reason, could seriously harm our ability to satisfy our
cuslomer order deadlines. If we cannot provide timety delivery of our systems, our business, financial condition, rasults of
operations and cash {lows would be adversely aflecled to a significant extent.

If we raquire additiona! capital in the future, it may not be avatlable, or if available, may not be on terms acceptable to
us.

We believe that our existing balances of cash, cash equivalents, our cash flow from opserations, and fram a revolving credit
facility we renewed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 will be sufficient to meet our cash needs for working capilal and capital
expenditures for al least the next 12 manths. We may, howaver, require additional financing to fund our operations in the
future. Although we expect existing debt financing arrangements and cash flows generated from operating activities to be
sufficient lo fund operations at the current and projected lavels in the future, there is no assurance that our cperating plan wil
be achieved. Wa may need to lake actions to reduce costs, seek alternalive financing amangements or pursue additiona
placement of our common stock.

A significant contraction in the capital markets, particularly in the lechnology sector, may make 1t difficult for us to raise
additiona! capilal in the future, if and when it is required, especially if we are unable to maintain profitability. if adequate
capital is not available to us as required, or is not available on favorable terms, our shareholders may be subject to significant
dilution In their ownership if we raise additional funds through the issuance of equity securities, or we could be required 1o
significantly reduce or restructure our business operations.

The above mentioned revolving credil facility provides for up to $30 million in borrowings. There is no assurance that this
tacility will be sufficient to meet our cash needs. In addition, the credit facility contains financial covenants which must be met
for the availability of funds. There is no assurance that the company will in the future be able to meet the requirements of
these covenants so that the funds are available for borrowing.

Compliance with environmental regulations may be very costly, and the fallure to comply could result in liabllities,
fines and cessation of our business.

We are subject to a variety of governmental regulations related to the discharge or disposal of toxic, volatile or otherwise
hazardous chemicals. Current or future regulations could require us to purchase expensive equipment or lo incur other
substantial expenses to comply with environmental regulations. Any faiture by us to control the use of, or adequately restrict
the discharge or disposal of, hazardous subsiances could subject us to future liabilities, rasult in fines being imposed on us,
or resull in the suspension of production or cessation of our manufacturing operations.

If the protection of our proprietary rights Is inadequate, our business could be harmed.

Woe place a strong smphasis on the technically innovative features of our products and, where available, we generally seek
patent protection for those fealures. We currently hold 344 U.S. patents, some with pending foreign counterparts, have
approximately 182 U.S. patent applications pending and intend to file additional patent appfications, as we deam appropriate.
There can ba no assurance that patents will issue from any of our panding applications or that existing o future patents wil
ba sufficiently broad to protect our technology. While we attempt to protect our Intellectual property rights through patents,
copyrights and non-disclosure agreements, there can be no assurance that we will be able to protect our technology, or that
competitors will not be able to develop similar technolegy independently, In addition, the laws of certain foreign countries do
not protact our intellectual property to the same extent as the laws of the United States. Furthermore, certain types of
intellectual property are country-specific; for example, U.S. patents provide prolection in the U.S. bul generaliy do not provide
protection outside the U.S. Moreover, there can be no assurance that our existing or future patents will not be challenged,
invalidated or circumvented, or that the rights granted thereunder will provide meaningful compelitive advantages to us. In
any of such events, our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be harmed.

There has been substantial litigation regarding patent and other intellectual propenry rights in semiconductor-related
industries. Although we are not aware of any potential infringement by our preducts of any patents or proprietary rights of
others, further commercialization of our technolegy could provoke claims of infringement from third parties.

In addition, we rely on trade secrel protection for our technology, in part through confidentiality agreements with our

employees, consultants and third parties, These agreements could be breached and we may not have adequate remedies for
any such breach. In any case, othars may come to know about or determine our trade secrets through a variety of methods.
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Now and in the future, litigation may be necessary to enforce patents issued to us, to protect trade secrets or know-how
owned by us or to defend us agains! claimed infringement of the rights of others and to determine the scope and validity of
the proprietary rights of others. Any such fitigation could cause us lo accrue substantial cost or divert our management or
resources, which by itseff could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, resufts of operations and cash
flows. Further, adverse delerminations in such litigation could result in our Igss of proprietary rights, subject us to significant
liabilities and damages to third parties, require us 1o seek licenses from third parties or prevent us from manufacturing or
selling our products, any of which could harmm our business, financial condition, resuits of oparations and cash flows.

Qur efforts to protect our intellectual property may be less effective In some foreign countries where intellectual
property rights are not as well protected as in the United States.

In fiscal 2007, approximately 62.5% of our net sales were derived from sales in foreign countries, including certain countries
in Asia such as Singapore, Taiwan, Japan, China and Korea. The laws of some foreign countries do not protect our
proprielary rights lo as great an extent as do the laws of the United States, and many U.S. companies have encountered
subslantiat problems in protecting their proprietary rights against infringement in such countries, some of which are countries
in which wa have sold and conlinue o sell systems. Far example, in many countries other than the U.S,, the public disclosure
of an inventlon prior to the filing of a patant application for the Invention would invalidate the ability of a company to obtain a
patent. Similarly, in contrast to the United States where the contents of palem applications may remaln confidential during the
patent prosecution process in cerlain cases, the contents of a patent application may be published before a patent is granted,
which provides competitors an advanced view of the contents of applications prior to the establishment of patent rights. For
these and other reasons, we also have nol filed patent applications in these countries to the same exient that we file in the
U.S. There is a risk that our means of protecting our proprielary rights may not be adequate in thesa countries. Qur
competitors in these countries may independently develop simitar technclogy or duplicate our systems. if we fail to
adequately protect our intellectual property in these countries, it would be easier for gur competitors to sell competing
products in thosa countries,

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents could adversely affect the rights of the holders of our common
stock. :

Our Aricles of Incorporalion authorize our Board of Directors 1o issue preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the
rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted to or imposed upon any unissued shares of preferred stock and o fix
the number of shares constituling any serigs and the designations of such serias, wilhoul further vote or action by the
shareholders. We have no present plans (o issue any preferred stock in order lo deter a takeover and/or adopt additional anti-
takeover measures, If such actions are taken in the future, they may make a change of control difficult, éven if a change of
control would be beneficial to our shareholders.

Any anti-takeover provisions, including any issuance of preferred stock, could have the effect of discouraging a third party
from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to gain control of us. In addition, these provisions could limit the price that
investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

Wo must attract and retain key personne! to help direct and support our future growth. Competition for such
personnel In our Industry can be high.

Our success depends to a significant degree upon the continued contributions of our key management, engineering, sales
and marketing, cuslomer support, finance and manufacturing parsonnel, The loss of any of these key perscnnel, particularly
our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Raymon F. Thompson, or our President and Chief Operating Officer, Larry E.
Murphy. could harm our business and operaling resulls. We do not have key person life insurance on any of our exegutives.
Furthar, to support future growth, we will need to attract and retain additional qualified employees. The poo! of qualified
applicants is limited and it can be difficull to hire and relocate personnel from other areas. Competition for such personne)
can bae intense, and we may not be successful in attracting and retaining qualified senior executives and olher employees.

item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None,
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Item 2. Properties

We own two manufacturing facilities located on sites near Kalispell, Montana with approximately 251,000 square feet in
the aggregale. Additionally, we own two manufacturing facilities located in Libby, Montana housing approximately 20,000
square feet in the aggregate, We also own a facility located in Coopersburg, Pennsylvania, which serves as a manufacturing
facility for our Rhetech, Inc. subsidiary, which we expanded by 10,000 square feet in fiscal 2007 for a total of 32,000 square
fast. Wae construcled a 20,000 square-foot production and office building in Salzburg, Austria, which we occupied in
December 2005. We believe that our existing manufacturing facilities will be adequate to meet our requirements for the
foreseeable future and thal suitable additional or substitute space will be available as needed. We own an office building in
Cambridge, UK, which serves as our European headquarters for sales and cuslomer supporl. We also lease 13 other
smalter facilites worldwide, which are used as sales and customer service centers.

We are subject to a variety of govermental regulations related o the discharge or disposal of toxic, volatile, or
otherwise hazardous chemicals used on Semitool's premises. We believe thal we are in material compliance with these
regulations and that we have obtained all nacessary environmental permits lo conduct our business. Nevertheless, current or
future regutations could require us to purchase expensive equipment or to incur other substantial expenses lo comply with
environmental regulations. Any failure by us to control the use of. or adsqualely restrict the discharge or disposal of,
hazardous substances could subject us to fulure liabilities. result in fines being imposed on us, of result in the suspension of
production or cessation of our manufacturing operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of our business, including employment related
liigations. Although there can be no assurance as to the ullimate disposition of ihese matters, it is the opinion of
management, based upon the informalion available at this time, that the currently expected oulcome of these matters,
individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material agverse effect on our business, financial condition, resulls of
operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to the shareholders for a vole during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year.
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PART Il

ftem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our Common Stock is traded under the symbo! *“SMTL" on the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC. The approximate number of
shareholders of record at December 3, 2007 was 119 and the reported lasi sale price on that date of cur common stock on
the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC was $8.72. The high and low sales prices for our comman siock reported by the NASDAQ
Stock Market LLC are shown below.

Common Stock Price Range

Flscal Year
Ended September 30,
2007 2006
High Low High Low
First Quarter $14.00 $986 $10.98 $7.78
Second Quarter $14.09 $10.80 $13.65 $10.44
Third Quarter $13.13 $9.59 $12.29 $8.54
Fourth Quarter $10.56 $8.78 $11.27 $8.00

Since our initial public offering of common stock in February of 1995, we have never declared or paid any cash dividend and
we have no intent to do so in the near future.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company's Common
Stock from September 30, 2002 through the end of the Company's fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, with the
percentage change in the cumulative total return for the NASDAQ Composite Index and the RDG Semiconductor Composite
Index. The comparison assumes an investment of $100 on September 30, 2002 in the Company’s Common Stock and in
each of the foregoing indices and assumes reinvestmant of dividends. The stock performance shown on the graph below is
not nagcessarily indicative of fulure price paerformence.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN"
Among Somitool, inc., The NASDAG Composita index
And The RDG Semiconductor Composite index
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item 6. Selected Financlal Data

This summary should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,

Summary Consolidated Financial Information
{in thousands, except per share data)

Yoar Ended September 30,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales $ 215220 $ 243218 § 190373 $ 139,627 § 117,048
Gross profit (1) 101,491 112,919 96,969 77421 35,254
Income (loss) from operations 2,633 14,770 10,714 10,876 (35,269}
Net income (loss) 5231 9,836 10,050 7,354 {21,151)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.16 0.31 0.35 025 (0.74)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities 16,090 17,347 7.032 22,354 27,935
Working capital (1) 123,370 114,863 83,620 78,287 73,18
Total assels 226,329 232,396 178,680 181,300 138,774
Short-term debt 1,158 3,680 292 225 228
Long-term debt and c¢apital leases 10,027 4,699 3.1 2,089 2,322
Shareholders' aquity (2) 168,853 161,024 120,421 109,843 100,677

{1} In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, we wrote down inventory by $19.1 million primarily due to a change in foracasted demand for
certain of our products due to the successful introduction of our new Raider platform. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we
wrote down inventory by approximataly $3.0 miltion primarily due to product enhancements that changed the usage of certain
component parts, making them obsolete.

{2) In conjunclion with an equily offering of common stock in December 2005, the Company issued thres million shares of common
stock resulting in approximately $28.0 million in nat cash proceeds.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Overview

We design, manufacture, install and service highly-engineered equipment for use in the fabrication of semiconductor devices.
Our products are focused on the wel chemical process steps in integrated circuit, or IC, manufacturing and include systems
for wafer surface preparation and electrochemical deposition, or ECD, applications. Our surface preparation systems are
designed for Front End of Line (FEOL), Back End of Line (BEOL) and wafer levet packaging of ICs processes. Our single
waler FEOL surface preparation systems are used for photoresist stripping, post etch and prediffusion cleans. Qur BEOL
surface preparation systems are used for polymer removal and packaging applications, Qur ECD systems are used to plate
coppar and other metals, which are used for the IC's internal wiring, or interconnects; to plate solder and lead free solder
bumps for wafer level packaging applications; and o plate other metals for various semiconductor and related applications.
Also, our surface preparation systems are used for cleaning and etching processes for wafer levet packaging. Our primary
product for all of these processes is the Raider platform, which is a mulli-chamber single wafar tool. Our products address
critical applications within the semiconductor manufacturing process, and help enable our customers to manufacture more
advanced semiconductor devices that feature higher levels of performancs. The fabrication of semiconductor devices
typically requires several hundred manufacturing steps, with the number of steps continuing to increase for advanced
devicas. Due to the breadth of our product portfolio and advanced technology capabiliies, our solutions address over 150 of
thesa manufacturing steps.

There are several key trends in the semiconductor manufacturing industry driving growth in demand for wafer surface
preparation, ECD and other advanced semiconductor equipment:

+ smaller device features for lower cost and higher performance;

« new materials to fabricate more advanced semiconductor devices;

+ increased use of 300mm wafers to reduce manufacturing cosls;

* move to single-wafer processing technologies for enhanced surface preparation;

+ wafer level and other advanced packaging to enable smaller portable products; and

+ emerging need for thinned waters and chip stacking driven by the demand for smaller portable devices.

As the semiconductor manufacturing process increases in complexity and production parameters become even more
stringent, semiconductor manufacturers increasingly rely upon manufacturers of semiconductor equipment to achieve
improved process contral, provide a smaller equipment footprint and lower the cost of ownership of their manufacturing
procasses. Key elements of our solution include technological leadership, a comprehensive product portfolio, including our
Ralder platform and vertically-integrated manufacturing and design capabilities,

Key Porformance Indicators

Our management focuses on revenues, gross margin, operating expenses and profitability in managing our business. In
addition 1o these financial measures found in our consolidated financial slatements, we also use bookings, backlog.
shipments, deferred revenue and shipment-based results of operations. Bookings are firm orders for which we have received
written customer authorization in the fiscal period. Backlog is Lhe balance of undelivered orders at the end of a fiscal period.
In order to be included in bookings or backlog, an order must be scheduled to ship within the next 12 months. Backlog and
forecasted orders drive our production schedule. Shipments measure how weli we have met our production plan and are
viewed as a primary measure of factory cutput. Deferred revenue primarily represents tool shipments for which we are
awailing final customer acceptance.

A summary of key faclors that impacted our financial performance during fiscal year 2007 includes:
* Qur fiscal 2007 bookings ware $193.6 million and include $118.9 million in bookings for our Raider platiorm. Fourth
quarter fiscal 2007 bookings were $60.2 million. Our consolidated ordars backlog of $58.9 million and deferred revenue
of $15.4 million resulted in a revenue backlog of $74.3 million at September 30, 2007.
* Shipments in fiscal 2007 were $219.9 million including $135.0 miflion from Raider shipments.

+ Net income was $5.2 million, or 2.4%, on net sales of $215.2 million in fiscal 2007 compared with net income of $9.8
million, or 4.0%, on net sales of $243.2 million in fiscal 2008,

« Our gross margin increased to 47.2% of net sales, up from 46.4% in fiscal 2006. An inventory write off in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2007 negatively impacted fiscal year 2007 margins by approximately one percentage point,

+ Cash and cash equivalents were $16.1 million at September 30, 2007, a decrease of $1.2 million from $17.3 million at
Seplember 30, 2006.

22




Resuits of Operations

The following table sets forth our consclidated results of operations for the periods indicated as a percentage of net sales:

Year Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2005
Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales 52.8% 53.6% 49.1%
Gross profit 47.2% 46.4% 50.9%
Operating expensas:
Selling, general and administrative 33.3% 30.3% 34.9%
Research and development 12.6% 10.1% 10.4%
Downsizing costs 0.3% % -%
Gain on sale of building (0.3Y% ~% =%
Total operating expenses 45.9% 40.4% 45.3%
Income from operations 1.2% 6.0% 5.6%
Other income (expense) 0.3% =% 2.0%
Income before income taxes 1.5% 6.0% 7.6%
Income tax provision {benefit) (0.9)% 2.0% 2.3%
Net incorne 24% 4.0% 5.3%
Flscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006 and Fiscal 2005
Net Sales
Yoar Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in millions)
Net Sales $ 2152 $ 2432 § 190.4
By Product Line:
Semiconductor equipment $ 214.0 $ 2425 % 190.3
License fees $ 1.2 $ 07 & 0.1
By Geographical Distribution, percentage of net tool sales:
North America 30.4% 31.6% 18.8%
Europe 43.5% 26.9% 27.8%
Asia, including Japan 26.1% 41.5% 53.4%

Net sales consist of revenues from sales of semiconductor equipment, spare parts and service and reyalties. Our revenue
recognition policy provides that revenue from sales of semiconductor equipment may be racognizable upon shipment if the
product is an existing tool lo a customer environment in which we have already successfully installed and gained acceplance
of cur products and the revenue recognition criteria in SAB 104, “Revenue Recognition” have been met. Alternatively,
revenue will be deferred and only recognized upon final customer acceptance for lools that are new products or where an
existing tool is sold into @ new customer environment. Ravenue for elements other than equipment, such as installation
revenue, is included in too! acceptance revenue. License fee revenue represents fees generated from our anode technology.

Net sales declined 11.5% or $28.0 million o $215.2 million for fiscal 2007 as compared to $243.2 million in fiscal 2006.
Business activity levels declined and we experienced a slow down in our bookings in the first three quartaers of fiscal 2007.
Revenues for ECD Raiders for copper interconnect applications increased by over 70% as compared with fiscal 2006 levels
while revenues from our wafer level packaging applications decreased by approximately 23%. Revenues for our single-wafer
surface preparation Raiders for FEOL applications increased approximately 23% while revenues for BEOL cleans
applications declined approximately 38% from prior year levels. FEOL tools benefited from the transition away from batch
processing to single wafer processing to more closely control cleaning processes of smaller geometry devices whereas BEOL
applications for current industry standard 300mm wafer fabs had previously made the transition to single wafer and were
affected by the overall decline in semiconductor industry business lavels. Overall, revenues from our Raider platform
contributed just more than 60% to our fiscal 2007 revenues and while Raider revenue declined in absoclute dollars, the decline
is the equivalent of two or three tools. Revenues from automated and manual batch tools, used primarily for cleaning
applications declined by approximately $14 million when compared with fiscal 2006 levels as single wafer processing
continues to supplant batch processing in 300mm fabs. The revenua contribution from spare parts, service and from our
Rhetech subsidiary was proporticnate with fiscal 2006 levels.
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Net sales increased 27.7% or $52.8 million to $243.2 million for fiscal 2006 as compared to $190.4 million in fiscal 2005. In
general, business aclivily levels increased in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 es all product lines showed improvement
over fiscal 2005 levels. Revenue from both shipments and acceptances of single-wafer surface preparation Raiders for
FEOL and BEOQL cleans applications and ECD Raiders for interconnect applications accounted for almost 60% of fiscal 2006
sales and for more than 70% of the increase in sales over fiscal 2005 levels, Our Raider tool base continued io expand,
allowing us to recognize more revenue upon tool shipment as evidenced by the 63% increase in revenue from shipments in
fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 and the 26% decrease in revenue from tool acceptances from fiscal 2005. Spare
Parts sales contributed more than 11% to the increase in fiscal 2006 revenues while sales at our Rhetech subsidiary added
almost 10% to the increase in revenues over fiscal 2005 levels.

Geographically, the North American and European markets were our leading market areas in fiscal 2007, although we see
additional opportunity in Asia when we compare ourselves to the rest of the industry.

Eurcpean tool sales increased sharply making it our leading market area for tool sales in fiscal 2007 contributing 43.5% to
total tool sales. This represents an increase of 16.6% from fiscal 2006 levels and 15.7% from fiscal 2005 levels,

North American tool sales were assentially flat in fiscal 2007 as compared with fiscal 2006, declining approximately one
percentage point to 30.4% of total tool sales. Both fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007 represent a strong increase from fiscal 2005
North American tcol sales of 18.8%.

Asian tool sales declined to 26.1% of total tool sales in fiscal 2007 after contributing 41.5% and §3.4%, respectively, in fiscal
2006 and fiscal 2005. We continue to place a strong focus on our sales and marketing efforts in this region and anticipate
stronger sales in the Asian market in fiscal 2008.

Gross Profit

Year Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars In thousands)
Gross profit $ 101,491 $ 112819 & 98,969
Percentage of net sales 47.2% 46.4% 50.9%

Gross profil declined $11.4 million in absolute dollars or 10.1% in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006. Gross profit
increased $16.0 million or 16.4% in fiscal 2006 compared to the fiscal 2005 gross profit of $97.0 million. As a percentage of
net sales, gross profit increased 0.8 percentage points in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 after decreasing 4.5
percentage points in fiscal 2006 from 50.9% in fiscal 2005.

Gross profit decreased in absolute dollars in fiscal 2007 because of lower sales volumes and improved by 0.8 percentage
points from fiscal 2008. Margins improved a combined three percentage points on lool revenues, spare parts and service
revenues and on sales from our Rhetech subsidiary. Our tocl margins improved on copper interconnect, FEOL and BEOL
tools. Margin improvements were realized in both North America and Asia. Installation revenues contributed more to overall
revenue in both absolute dollars and on a percentage basis. Warranty and inslallation expense decreased in fiscal 2007,
contributing approximately one percentage point to the margin increase. These margin improvements were partially offsel by
increased obsolescence and invenlory reserve charges in the fourth quarter related to product enhancements on our Raider
tool line that rendered certain component parts obsolete.

Gross profit increased in absolute dollars in fiscal 2006 because of higher sales volumes bul declined by 4.5 percentags
points from fiscal 2005. The gross margin percentage was negatively impacted by selected lool inslallations of new
applications for first-time customers. One-time pricing incentives coupled, in certain instances, with increased manufacturing
costs, impacted the gross margin by approximately four percentage points in fiscal 2006. The gross margin benefited slightly
by a one-time order cancellation fee in the second quarter while increased warranty and installation costs also reduced the
gross margin by approximately one percentage point in fiscal 2008.

Selling, General and Administrative

Year Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands}
Selling, general and administrative $ 71,749 3 73624 % 66,513
Percentage of net sales 33.3% 30.3% 34.9%

Selling, general and administrative {SG&A) expenses include employment costs for sales, marketing, customer support and
administrative personnel as well as travel, communications, professional fees and expenses refated to sales and service
offices al our global locations. SG&A expenses decreased $1.9 million in fiscal 2007 as compared with fiscal 2006 and
increased $7.1 million in fiscal 2006 as compared with fiscal 2005. As a percantage of net sales, SG&A expenses increased
10 33.3% up from 30.3% in fiscal 2006 but down from 34.9% in fiscal 2005.
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In response to a slowdown in the semiconductor industry, we implemented a plan to align our cost structure with cur business
outlook for the remainder of the fiscal year in April 2007. The plan consisted primarily of a seven percent reduction in our
worldwide work force, management pay culs, reduced overtime and mandalory leave. As a result, travel, aircraft and general
business costs decreased over the course of the ysar. Employment costs increased $2.4 million over fiscat 2006 levels
primarily related to expenses incurred prior to the implementation of the cost alignment pian in the second half of fiscal 2007.
Employment costs decreased §$1.9 million in the second half of fiscal 2007. Commission expense declined $2.8 miflion in
fiscal 2007 related to our transition to a direcl marketing and sales force in Talwen and China. Professional fees also
doclined in fiscal 2007 as compared with fiscal 2006 as fiscal 2006 professional fees included certain duplicale expanses
related to the change in our external auditors.

Employmenl costs increased $7.1 million in fiscal 2006 as compared with fiscal 2005 as we increased staff to support
expanded business activity and recorded stock-based compensation expense. In fiscal 2008, we complated our plan to
transition from using an outsourced sales representative in Taiwan and China to maintaining 8 direct sales and custamer
service presence in those locations. As a result, we saved an estimated $1.2 million in sales representalive commission
axpense in Taiwan and China in fisca} 2006. The combination of commissian expense and direct expenses associated with
our transition to a direct sales and service presence in Taiwan and China has resulted in some duplication of expenses but
we expect this change from a variable cost structure to a fixed cost structure will improve our profitability in the fulure,
Professional Fees decreased 28% in fiscal 2006 reflecting reduced audil and compliance fees refated to the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002. Travel and other expenses related to expanded businass activity and customer support increased. These
increases were partially offset by decreased legal cosls.

Research and Devefopment

Year Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2005
{Dollars in thousands)
Research and development $ 27,080 $ 24525 $ 19,742
Percentage of nel sales 12.6% 10.1% 10.4%

Research and Development {R3D) expense consists of salaries, project materials, laboratory costs, consulting fees and other
costs associated with our product development efforts. R&D expense increased $2.6 million or from 10.1% of net sales to
12.6% of net sales in fiscal 2007 as compared with fiscal 2006, R&D expense increased $4.8 million in fiscal 2006 as
compared to fiscal 2005 and dacreased glightly from 10.4% of net sales in fiscal 2005,

Increasing $1.7 million, prototype expense was the primary driver in the $2.8 million increass in R&D expense in fiscal 2007
as compared with fiscal 2006, Our surface preparation research and development efforts were focused on FEOL cleaning
applications, wafer edge cleaning processes and related equipment. ECD R&D focused on the development of a new
processing chamber capable of plating copper for devices at the 32 nanometer node and below, deep via applications, direct-
on-barrier plating, thin seed layer enhancement processes, porous sllicon processes and related equipmant. R&D projects
atso included a single wafer copper annealing process. Travel expense increased in fiscal 2007 related lo increased process
support for our tools.

Prototype expenses increased approximately $1.3 million in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2005 as we expanded our
research and development efforts, Our resaarch and development efforts were focused on the following projects which
include FEOL cleaning applications, edge cleaning processes and equipment and integrated megasonic cleans. ECD RD
focused on the development of proprietary processes and power supply hardware to provide arbilrary wave form and dynamic
current control for damascene plating, direci-on-barrier and thin seed layer processes, porous silicon processes and
equipment and deep via applications. R&D projects also included mini-batch vacuum fumace/anneal and Thru Silicon Via
{TSV) plating required for three dimensional chip stacking. During fiscal 20086, we and other semiconductar equipment
companies and research institutes formed a consortium called EMC 3D, whose mission is to develop the processes and
equipment needed for TSV technology. Depreciation expense increased approximately $1.6 million as we replaced older
tachnology toels in our demonstration laboratories with new generation Raider platform tools. Employment costs Increased
approximalely $1.4 million in the year-to-date comparison reflecting increased staff levels and stock-based compensation
axpanse. General operating expenses increased reflecting expanded business aclivity.

Our research and development expense has fluctuated from period to period in the past. We expect such fluctuations to
continue in the future, both in absolute dollars and as a percentage of net sales, primarily due to the timing of expenditures
and fluctuations in the level of net sales in a given period. We expect to continue to fund research and development
expendilures with a multi-year perspective and are committed to technology leadership in our sector of the semiconductor
equipment industry.
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Downsizing Costs

Year Ended September 30,
2007 2008 2005
{Dollars in theusands)
Downsizing cosls $ 677 $ - $ -
Percentage of net sales 0.3% % ~%

In April 2007, we announced and implemented a plan to align our cost structure with current business activity levels. The cost
reduction plan consisted primarily of a seven percent reduction in our worldwide work force, management pay cuts, reducad
overtime and mandatory leave. One-time involuntary termination costs of $677,000 were reported as a separate component
of operating expenses in our fiscal third quarter. All costs related to the downsizing plan were fully incurred in the third
quarter. Net of the downsizing costs, we saved approximately $5 million in employment, travel and generai business
expanses in the second half of fiscal 2007 as compared with spending in the first half of fiscal 2007,

Gain on Sale of Buliding

Yoar Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Gain on sale of building $ (648) $ - 8 -
Percentage of net sales (0.3)% -% -%

Woe sold a manufacturing facility located near Kalispell, Montana during the first quarter of fiscal 2007 for approximately $1.9
millien and recognized a gain on the sale of approximately $648,000.

Other Income (Expense)

Year Ended September 30,
2007 2008 2005
(In thousands)
interast income $ 352 $ 483  § 309
Interest expense (649) (479) (122)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 233 (148) (64)
Other 770 17 3,670
Tota! other income (expense) $ 706 b3 (117) $ 3,793

Net other income (expense) increased to a net other income of $706,000 in fiscal 2007 from a net other expense of $117,000
in fiscal 2006 and a net other income of $3.8 million in fiscal 2005. In fiscal 2007, we reported commission income of
approximately $156,000 from Starview Technology, Inc., a provider of manufacturing software for the semiconductor industry
in which Mr, Thompson, cur chairman and chief executive officer and his son-indaw, Thomas Sulzbacher, are majority
shareholders. We also reported rental income of a portion of our Cambridge facility. interestincome declined to $352,000 in
fiscal 2007 from $493,000 in fiscal 2006 because of lower investment levels. Interest expense increased 1o $649,000 in fiscal
2007 because of increased use of our line of credit.

In October 2004, we received a seed layer enhancement litigation settiement payment of $2.9 million from Novellus Systems,
Inc. which accounted for most of the fiscal 2005 net, other income.

We reported an exchange gain of $233,000 in fiscal 2007 as compared to exchange losses of $148,000 and $64,000 in fiscal
2006 and 2005, respectively, related to Ructuations in the Yen, Euro and British pound. Beginning in April 2007, due 1o a
change in how we conduct business and following an evaluation of the scope of our operations and business practices, we
concluded that the Euro is the currency of the primary economic environment in which Semitcol Austria operates and,
consequantly, changed the functional currency for Semitool Austria to the Euro. Semitool Austria invoices its customers in
Eurcs and its financing and operating activilies are denominated in the Euro. Accordingly, from April 1, 2007, all assets and
liabilities of Semitool Austria are translatad at period-end exchange rates and all revenues and expenses are re-measured at
average rales prevailing during the period. Translation adjustmenis are reported as a separate component of accumulated
other comprehansive loss.
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income Taxes

Yoar Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2005
{Dollars In thousands)
Income 1ax provision (benefit) $ (1,892) 3 4817 8 4457
Effactive tax rate (57)% 33% 32%

Our estimated effective full year tax rate for fiscat 2007 was a benefit of 57% as compared to the effective tax rate for fiscal
2006 of 33%. Our fiscal year 2007 tax rate is lower than in fiscal 2006 based on a combination of the extension of the federal
Research and Experimentation Credit (Credit) in fiscal 2007 for fiscal 2006, the current year estimated Credit and the decline
in our Net Income before Taxes (NIBT) from $14.7 million in fiscal 2006 to $3.3 million in fiscal 2007. While the fiscal year
NIBT decreased, the qualified research expenditures affecting the Credil are estimated to remain near the level ganerated on
the fiscal year 2006 tax retum, the combination of which results in a reduction of the effective tax rate for the fiscal year. The
effective rate was also impacted by additional Montana R&D credils realized in excess of prior estimates and a tax benefil
realized in tha United Kingdom for an exchange loss incurred transiating statutory financial statements from the Great Britain
Pound to the U.S. Dollar,

For fiscal year 2007, we recorded an income tax benefit of $1.9 millien as compared to a tax provision of $4.8 million for the
corresponding pericd of fiscal year 2008. The first quarter of fiscal year 2007 included a benefit of $540,000 related to the
extension of the Credil as it pertains to our fiscal year 2006. Legislation to extend the Cradit was signed inlo law after the
close of our fiscal year 2006 on September 30, 2006; therefore we were unable to recognize the full Credit in fiscal 2006. The
third quarter of fiscal year 2007 includes a benefit of $808,000 due to an increase in the Research and Exparimantation
Credit and deductions related to foreign sales on our fiscal year 2008 U.S. income tax return.

Our estimated effective tax rate increased to 33% In fiscal 2006 as compared to 32% in fiscal 2005. The effective tax rate in
fiscal 2006 was higher compared to the rate used for fiscal 2005 bacause the Federal Research Credit expired in December
2005. As of September 30, 2006, no extension of the Research Credit had baen enacted by Congress.

The expensing of stock-based awards in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R)
“Share-Based Payment,” and the limited deductibifity of those awards in some jurisdictions, also contributed to the increase in
our effectiva tax rate for fiscal year 2006.

Our future effective tax rate is based on our continued investments in research and development programs qualifying for the
Credit and our expectations of eamings from operations in Jurisdictions with lower tax rates throughout the world.

Backlog and Deferred Revenue

September 30,
2007 2006 2005
{Dollars in millions)

Backlog $ 58.9 $ 853 3% 61.3
Parcentage change in backlog

year over year (30.9)% 39.2% 62.6%
Deferred revenue $ 15.4 $ 144 § 235
Percentage change in deferred revenue

year over year 6.9% (38.7% (46.6)%

Approximately 79% of our current backlog is for Raider tools. Deferred revenue increased $1.0 million at September 30,
2007 as compared with September 30, 2006 primanily because of shipments of Raiders into either new customer
environments or inte Japan, where title does not ransfer until final customer acceptance, both of which require full deferral of
tool revenue unti! fina! customer acceptance in accordance with our revenue recognition policy. Current defarrals include all
or a part of 17 Raiders as compared with 23 Raiders al September 30, 2006 and 27 Raiders at September 30, 2005. The
fiscal 2005 figure includes a higher percentage of Raidars that represented new tools shipped into new customer
environments, requiring full deferral of revenue on those tools.

We include in backlog those customer orders far which we have written customer authorization and for which shipment is
scheduled within the next 12 months, Qrders are sublect to cancellation or rescheduling by customers with limited or no
cancellation fees. As the result of systems ordered and shipped in the same quarer, possible changas in customer delivery
dates, cancellations and shipment delays and acceptances of shipped equipment carried in deferred revenue, the backlog at
any particular date and the bookings for any particular period are not necessarily indicative of actual revenue for any
succeeding period. In particular, during periods of downturns in the semiconductor industry we have experienced
cancellations and significant shipment delays.
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Deferred profit included in current liabilities is derived from deferred revenue, which primarily relates to equipment shipped to
customers that has not been accepted by the customer, less the defermed cost of sales, including wamranty and installation,
and commission expenses, Deferred revenue is not included in orders backlog.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective the beginning of fiscal 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R), "Share-Based Payment,” and elected to adopt the -
modified prospective application method. SFAS No. 123(R) requires us to use a fair-value based method to account for stock-
based compensation. Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant dale, based on the fair value of the award
and is recognized as expense over the employeses’ requisite sarvice period. The fair value of each stock option grant is
estimated using the Black-Schotes option pricing model. This model was developed for use in estimaling the value of publicly
traded options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable, Cur employee stock options have characteristics
that differ from those of publicly traded options.

Total compensation cost recorded in fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 was $1.1 million and $1.4 million, respeclively, or $1.1 million
and $940,000 after tax, respectively, in each period, an impact of approximately $0.03 per basic and diluted share in both
pertods, Through fiscal 2005, we accounted for our stock option plans using the intrinsic value method under Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB No. 25).

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating Activities. Operalions provided $2.9 million in cash during fiscal 2007. The primary use of cash in fiscal 2007 was
a $10.4 million decreasa in accounts payable as our payables declined due to lower business activity levels compared to
fiscal 2006. As a result of the inventory reduction plan implemented in the third quarter as well as a write off of obsolete
Inventory in the fourth quarter, inventories declined by $6.8 million. Customer advances decreased $2.9 million as we
shipped the tools undertying those advances. Income taxes payabla and payrall related liabilities decreased $5.0 million. The
primary sources of cash from operations during fiscal 2007 were net income of $5.2 million and non-cash components of net
income including $10.7 million in depreciation and amortization expense offset by a $2.3 miliion decreass in deferred income
taxes.

In fiscal 2006, cash used by operations was $8.4 million. The primary uses of cash were increased trade receivables of
$15.6 million as a result of higher sales levels and increased inventory of $21.8 million to support increased sales volume,
Work-in Procass inventory grew $7.8 million and Raw Materials inventory grew $10.6 million to support curent and expected
shipment volumes and to ensure adequate inventory was available near our customers® locations to support their operations.
Cffsetting these uses of cash were a $4.0 million increase in accounts payable, a $3.6 milllon increase in customner advances,
nel income of $9.8 million and changes in non-cash components of net income including $9.7 million in depreciation and
amortization expense and $1.4 million in stock-based compensation expense offset by a $2.0 million decrease in deferred
income taxes.

investing Activities. Investing aclivities in fiscal 2007 included $8.7 miltion in purchases of factory and laboratory equipment,
other property and the expansion and remodeling of cur Rhetech subsidiary facility. Additionally we invested $5.7 million in
our development and demonstration laboralories by transfering finished goods inventory to property, plant and equipment.
These investments in our equipment and facilities were partially offset by proceeds from the sale of property, plant and
equipment, primarily a manufacturing facility located near Kalispell, Montana, which we sold for approximately $1.9 million.
Woe also invested a net amounl of $1.1 million in our patent portfolio.

Investing activities in fiscal 2006 primarily consisted of $14.3 million in purchases of property, planl and equipment including
the acquisition, remodeling and equipping of our new fabrication facility, the completion of the manufacturing and offica facility
in Salzburg, Austria, the remodeling and expansian of the Raider production floar and the initial phases of a remodeling and
expansion project at our Rhetech subsidiary in Coopersburg, Pennsylvania. We invested $3.7 million in our development and
demonstration laboratories primarily for tools on our Raider platform by transferring finished goods inventory to property, plant
and equipment. We continued to invest in intellectual property rights which used cash of $1.3 million.

Financing Activities. Financing activities in fiscal 2007 provided cash of $3.6 million and consisted primarily of $1.6 million in
bomrowings undar long-tarm debt for our Rhetech subsidiary expansion and remodeling project and $4.9 miliion in new long-
term debt used to finance the acquisition, remodeling and equipping of a manufacturing facility located near Kalispedl,
Montana. The $4.9 millicn financing with First Interstate Bank is under a value-added loan program sponsored by the
Montana Board of Investments (MBOI). The MBOI participation in 75% of the loan carrigs an interest rate of 2.5% for the first
five years and 6.5% for the second five years of a ten-year term. The 25% of the loan financed by First Interslate Bank has a
7.75% interest rate over the ten-ysar term. Stock optlon exercises also provided $1.2 million in fiscal 2007, Offsetting these
sources of cash, we repaid shori-term borrowings of $3.1 million on our revolving line of credit in fiscal 2007. There are
currently no advances oulstanding on the revolving credit line.

Financing activities in fiscal 2006 consisted primarity of approximately $27.8 million in cash proceeds from an equity offesing
of three million shares of common stock in December 2005, net borrowings under our revolving credit facility of approximataly
$3.1 million, borrowings under long-term debt of $2.1 million, primarily for the new facility baing constructed in Austria and
$1.3 million from the exercise of stock options.

Off-Balance Shest Amangements. We do not have any relalionships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships,
such as entities oflen refarred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the
purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangementis or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. As such, we are not
exposad to the types of financing, liquidity, market or credit risks that could arise if we had engaged in such relationships.
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The following commitments as of September 30, 2007, incurred in the nommal course of business, have been included in the
consolidated financial statements with the exception of purchase order commitments and operating lease obligations, which
are properly excluded under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. They are disclosed in
lhe following table in order to provide a consolidated picture of our financial position and liquidity.

Payments Due by Peried

Less
Than 1-3 4-5 After
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(In thousands)

Long-term debt $ 111928 $ 1100 % 221 0§ 2365 § 5451
Capital lease obligations 57 57 - - -~
Operating leases 2450 1,31 848 230 1
Purchase order commitments 8,069 7,404 565 - -
Total commilments $ 29,704 $ 9933 S$§ 3724 § 2595 § 5452

We have agreements with limited liability companies wholly-owned by Mr. Raymon F. Thompson, our chairman and chief
executive officer, to lease aircraft and an aircraft hangar, Under these agreements, rent expense was approximately
$2,839,200 for the year ended September 30, 2007 and $3,289,200 in each of the years ended September 30, 2006 and
2005. The current rental rate is approximately $199,100 per month for both the aircraft and the hangar,; tha lease terms are
menth-to-month and therefore are nol included in the above table, The terms of the lease agreements were based on
comparable informalion on lease rates received from independent aircraft leasing dealers and finance entities for similar
aircraft. We believe that these lease agreements are on terms no less favorable 1o us than could have been obtained from an
unaffiliated pary.

During the fiscal years 2005 through 2007, the Company acted as a sales representative to Starview Technology, Inc,, a
provider of manufacturing software for the semiconductor industry in which Mr. Thompson and his son-in-law, Thomas
Sulzbacher, are majority shareholders. The Company earned sales commissions from Starview Technology in the amount of
$158,000 in fiscal 2007.

In December 2004, wo sold a condominium lccated in Kalispel!l, Montana to Larry E. Murphy, our president and chief
operating officer, for $250,000 in cash. The condominium had previously been used to provide short-term housing to
employees who were nol localed in the Kalispell area. The terms were negotiated with Mr. Murphy based on the estimated
current market value of the condominium,

As of September 30, 2007, our principal sources of liquidity consistad of approximately $16.1 million of cash and cash
equivalents and $30.0 million available under our $30.0 million revolving line of credit. The credit facility is with Wells Fargo
and bears interest at the bank's prime lending rate, 7.75% as of September 30, 2007, or at our option, LIBOR plus 2.25%, or
7.37% as of that date. The revaolving credit line expires on March 1, 2009. The Credit Agreemen! has various restrictive
covenants including a prohibition against pledging real, fixed or intangible assets during the term of the agreement and the
maintenance of various financial covenants. If we were to default on the Credit Agreement or if there were a materially
adverse change in our financial condition, the bank could accelerate payment of any advances outstanding under the Credit
Agreement. In addition, the availability of funds requires compliance with certain financial covenants. We currently are in
compliance with our debl cevenants; however, there is no assurance that in the future we will be abile to maintain compliance
with these covenants so as to ensure availability of the line.

We believe that we have sufficient cash and cash equivalents, along with funds expected to be generated from operations
and amounts available under our credit facility to meet operating expenses and planned capital expenditures through fiscal
2008 and into the foreseeable future, However, continued growth in shipments of product may require additional funding. We
estimate capital expendilures will be between $7.0 million and $9.0 million during the next twelve months. We cummently have
an effective shelf registration statement, which registers the offer and sale of up to an aggregate $47 million of our securilies.
If addilional financia! resources are required in the future, we expect either to issue securities from the shelf registration
statement or to issue other financial instruments, whichever management deems advisable. Of course, there can be no
assurance that in the future we will be able to issue additional common stock or other financial instruments on acceptable
terms,

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
Slates of America requires us to make estimates and judgments that affact the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our astimates,
including thosa related to revenue recognition, inventories, warranty obligalions, bad dabts, investments, intangible assets,
income taxes, financing operations, employee benefits, contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumplions that are believed {0 be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabililies that are nol readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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We believe Ihe following crilical accounting policies and estimates affect our more significant judgments and estimates used
in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue recognition is significant bacause revenue is a key component of our results of operations.
We recognize revenue under the guidance for Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (SAB 104), “Revenue Recognition.” Under
this method, tevenue is recognized only when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered, the seller's price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Our product
sales generally contain substantive customer acceptance provisions. Sales of new producls to new or exisling customers are
not recognized until customer acceptanca. Likewise, sales of existing products to new customer environments are nol
recognized until customer acceptance. Il mulliple elemants exist, sales of existing products into existing customer
environmenls are treated as such in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-21, "Accounting for Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” The amount of revenue recognized in multipte element arrangements is the lesser
of the fair value of the equipment or the contracted amounl that was due or payable upon title transfer. The revenue for
glements other than equipment is recorded in deferred profit and is recognized when the remaining goods and/or services are
delivered or performed. Revenue related to service is racognized upon completion of performance of the service or ratably
over the life of the related service contract. Spare parls sales are recognized upon shipmen! when title and risk of loss pass
to the customer, Uneamed revenue from service contract agreements is included in Customer Advances in the cumrent
liabilities section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In addition, the timing of certain expenses, such as cost of sales, including installation and warranly, and commission
expenses coincides with the recognition of the related revenues. We follow specific guidelines in measuring revenue;
however, cenain judgments such as the definition of a new customer environmant and new acceplance criteria or if
installation is perfunctory may be required in the application of our revenue recognition policy.

Inventories. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-out basis. Accordingly, we write down the
camying vatue of inventories for estimated obsolescence and future marketability. On a quarterly basis, we compare historical
and projected sales and usage of raw materials and parts and our assumptions about future use of raw materials, parts and
finished goods with our forecast, market demand and industry conditions to determine potential obselescence or whether the
invenitory on hand represents excess quantities. As a result of our analysis, we record reserves impacting Cost of Sales, if
appropriate. These reserves are subject to management judgment and if actual future use, demand or market conditions are
less favorable than those projected by us, additional inventory valuation write-downs may be required,

Warranty Obtigations. Wa provida for the estimated cost of equipment warranties when the refated revenue is recognized.
We track individual warranties on a too!-by-tool basis and develop estimated rates by equipmeni class based on this history,
The rates are used to estimate the warranty accrual for a given specific pieca of equipment. These rates are revised
periodically to reflect current cost trends due to the currenl life cycile of that product class. The warranty accrual is reduced by
actual costs of providing the warranty or if a balance is remaining at the end of the warranty period, then that amount is also
written off. Warranty accrual expense impacts primarily Cost of Sales. While we engage in extensive product qualily
programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality of our component suppliers, our warranty
cbligation is affecied by product failure rates, material usage and sarvice delivery costs incurred in correcting a product
failure. Should actual product failure rales, matenial usage or service delivery costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the
estimated warranty liability would be required.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of our customers to make required payments. Wae record expense as a component of selling, general and
administrative within the Consolidated Statements of Income. If the financial condition of our customers were to deleriorate,
due to the cyclicality of the industries we serve or for other reasons, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances and expense may be required. Likewise, if we are successfully abla to collect on an amount
presumed to be uncollectible, the allowance for doubtful accounts and the related expense may be reduced. In general, it
takes longer to collect payment in the capilal equipment industry than in certain other industries. Days Sales Outstanding
(DSO) of peer companies in our industry ranges between approximately 50 and 145 days.

Defarred Tax Assets. We make estimates to determine the amount of our defarred tax assets that we believa is more [ikely
than not lo be realized. We consider fulure taxable income and ongoing prudent tax planning strategies in assessing the
need for a valuation allowance: however, should we determine that we will nol be able to realize all or part of our net deferred
tax asset in the future, a decrease in the deferred tax assel would negatively impact our results of operations, particutarly the
income tax provision, in the period such determination was made.

Stock-Based Compensation. In fiscal 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective application
method and began accounting for stock-based compensalion using a fair-value based recognition method. Under the
provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), stock-based compensation cost is estimated at the grant date basad on the fair-value of the
award and is recognized as expense ratably ovar the requisile service period of the sward. Datarmining the appropriate fair-
value model and calculating the fair value of stock-basad awards requires considerable judgment, inctuding estimating stock
price volatility, expected option life and forfeitura rates. We develop our estimates based on historical data and markel
information which can change significantly over lime. A small change in the estimatas used can have a relatively large
change in the estimated valuation,
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We use the Black-Scholes option valuation mode! to vatue employee stock options, consistent with the provisions of SFAS
No. 123(R), SAB No. 107 and our prior period pro forma disclosures of net eamings, including stock-based compensation
{determined under a fair value method as prescribed by SFAS No. 123). We estimate slock price volatility basad on a
blended rate of historical volatility and the implied volatility derived from traded options on our stock. Estimated option life and
forfeiture rate assumptions are derived from historical data. For stock-based compensation awards with graded vesting that
were granted after fiscal 2005, we recognize compensation expense using the straight-line amortization method. As of
Seplember 30, 2007, $2.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock option awards is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years,

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company accounted for stock-based employee compensation using the
intrinsic value method under APB No. 25 and had adopted the disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS No, 123) as amended by SFAS No. 148,
*Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure™ (SFAS No. 148).

Litigation

Wae are involvad in legal proceadings thal arise in (he ordinary course of our business, including employment related
litigations. Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate disposition of these matters, it is the opinion of
management, based upon the information available at this lime, that the cumently expected outcome of these matters,
individually or in the aggregate, will not have & material adverse effect on our business, financia! condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

New Accounting Pronouncements

tn July 2006, the Financiat Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issuad Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in
tncome Taxes- an Interprelation of FASB Statement 109, (FIN 48) which clarifies the accounting for uncertain tax positions.
FIN 48 provides that the tax effects from an uyncartain tax position be recognized in our financial statements, only if the
position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the lechnical merits of the position. The provisions of
FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Accordingly, we will adopt FIN 48 in fiscal 2008. We
are currently evaiuating the impact of adopting FIN 48 on our results of operations and financial condition.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 clarifies the definition of fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair
value measuremsnts. On Novemnber 14, 2007, the FASB deferred the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for nonfinancial assets
and liabilities, to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years. Accordingly,
we will adopt SFAS No. 157 in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. We are currently evaluating the impact this statement will have
on our results of operations and financial condition,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities —
Including an amendment of FASB Staternent No. 115." SFAS No. 159 allows entities to choose, at spacified election dates,
to measure aligible financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not otherwise required to be so
measured., If a company elects the fair value option for an eligible item, changes in that item’s fair value in subsequent
reparting periods must be recognized in current eamings. SFAS 158 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007. Accordingly we will adopt SFAS 159 in fiscal 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopling SFAS 159 on
our results of operations and financial condition.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Market Risks

Market risks relating to our operations resull primarity from changes in interest rate and changes in foreign currency
exchange rates,

As of September 30, 2007, we had approximately $11.2 million In long-term debt. As of September 30, 2008, we had
approximatety $5.3 million in long-lerm debt and approximaltely $3.1 millien in short-term debl. Qur long-term debt bears
interest at a fixed rate. As a resull, changes in the fixed rate interast markel woukd change the estimated fair value of the
fixed rate fong-term debt. Qur short-tarm dabt bears interest at the bank’s prime lending rale, 7.75% as of September 30,
2007, or at our option, LIBOR plus 2.25%, or 7.57% as of thal date. Our short-term debt bore interast al the bank’s prime
lending rate, 8.25% as of September 30, 2006, or at our option, LIBOR plus 2.25%, as of that date. We believe that a 10%
change in the long-lerm or the short-term intarest rates would nat have a material effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows. See Note 6 — Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases.

Al of our international operations are subject to inherent risks in conducting busingss abroad, including fluctuation in the
relative value of currencies. We manage this risk and attempt to reduce such exposure through an economic hedge using
short-term forward exchange contracts. At Septamber 30, 2007, we held forward contracts to sell Japanese Yen with a total
face value of $4.8 million and a total markel value of $4.9 millian and a lotal unrealized loss of approximately $100,000. At
Seplember 30, 2006, we held forward contracts to sell Japanese Yen with a total face value of $6.2 million and a total market
value of $5.9 million and a total unrealized gain of approximately $300,000. The impact of rmovements in currency exchange
rates on forward contracts is offset to the extent of receivables denominated in Japanese Yen. The effect of a 10% change in
foreign exchange rates on hedged transactions involving Japanese Yen forward exchange contracts and the underlying
transactions would not be material to our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. We do not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading or speculativa purposes.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

SEMITOOL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, 2007 and 2006
{Amounis in Thousands, Except Share Amounts)

2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,090 §$ 17,347
Trade receivables, less altowance for doubtful accounts of $259 and $269

in 2007 and 2006 56,999 56,593
inventories 78,017 90,159
income tax refund receivable 76 21
Prepaid expenses and other current assels 3,488 2,835
Deferred income taxes 13,301 11,268

Total current assets 167,981 178,413
Property, plant and equipment, net 49,148 44,610
Intangibles, less accumutated amortization of $3,279 and $2,390 in 2007 and 2006 8,336 8.470
Other assels 864 803

' Tota! assets $ 226,329 $ 232,396
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 12,958 § 22,882
Note payable to bank - 3,109
Accrued commissions 1,568 2,328
Agcrued wamranty 7,781 7,368
Accrued payroll and related benefits 6,859 8,784
Income taxes payable 247 3.274
Other accrued liabilities 3,688 2,070
Customer advances 1817 4,560
Deferred profit 8,736 8,604
Long-term debt and capital leases, due within one year 1,158 571

Total current liabilities 44,612 63,350
Long-term debt and capilal leases, due after one year 10,027 4,699
Deferred income taxes 2,837 3,123

Tolal liabilities 57,476 71,372
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders' equity:

Preferred stock, no par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized,

no shares issued and outstanding - -
Common stock, no par value, 75,000,000 shares authorized,

32,107,457 and 31,924,781 shares issued and outslanding in 2007 and 2006 83,215 80,738
Retained earings 86,130 80,899
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {492) (613)

Total shareholders’ equity 168,853 161,024

Totat liabilities and shareholders’ equity b3 226,329 $ 232,396

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SEMITOOL, INC.

Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Downsizing costs
Gain on sale of building
Total operating expenses
Income from operations

Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Cther, net

Tota! other income (expense)

Income before income taxes
Income tax provision (benefit)

Net income

Eamings per shara:
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the years ended Seplember 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005
{Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

2007 2008 2005
$ 215220 § 243,218 190,373
113,729 130,299 93,404
101,491 112,919 96.969
71,749 73,624 66,513
27,080 24,525 19,742
877 - -
{848) - -
98,858 98,149 86,255
2,633 14,770 10,714
352 493 309
(649) (479) (122)
1,003 (131) 3,606
706 (117) 3.793
3,339 14,653 14,507
(1,892) 4817 4,457
$ 5231 $ 9,838 10,050
$ 0.16 $ 0.32 0.35
$ 0.16 $ 0.31 0.35
32,034 31,174 28,709
32,450 31,518 29,086

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SEMITOOL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2008 and 2005

(Amounts in Thousands)

Common Stock

Accumulated
Number Other
Of Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Earnings Income (Loss) Total
Batance September 30, 2004 20668 & 49,222 $ 61013 § (392) $§ 109,843
Net income - - 10,050 - 10,050
Issuance of common stock under
employee compensation plans 65 349 - - 349
income tax effect of stock oplion
transactions - 29 - - 29
Compensation expense recognized under
employee stock option plans - 253 - - 253
Other comprehensive income - - - {103) (103)
Balance September 30, 2005 28,733 49,853 71,063 (493) 120,421
Net income - - 9,836 - 9,836
Issuance of common stock under
employee compensation plans 192 1,274 - - 1,274
Procaeds from stock offering 3.000 27,788 - - 27,788
Incoms lax effect of stock option
transactions - 427 - - 427
Compensation expense recognized under
employee stock option plans - 1,358 - - 1,386
Other comprehensive loss - - - {118) {118)
Balance September 30, 2006 31,925 80,738 80,899 {613) 161,024
Net income - - 5231 - 5231
Issuance of common stock undar
employee compensation plans 182 1177 - - 1177
Income tax effect of stock option
transactions - 247 - - 247
Compensation expense recognized under
employee stock option plans - 1,053 - - 1,053
Other comprehensive loss - — - 121 121
Balance September 30, 2007 32,107 § 83,215 § 86,130 §$ (492) § 168,853

The accompenying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




SEMITOOL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(Amounts in Thousands})
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2007 2008 2005
Operating aclivilies:
Net income 5231 § 9,83 % 10,050
Adjustments 10 reconcile net income to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
(Gain} Loss on disposition of assels (398} 125 116
Depreciation and amortization 10,703 9,743 7,237
Defarred income taxes {2,308} (2.014) 1,805
Income tax benefit received on the exercise of stock-based awards 29 99 29
Compensation expense recognized under employee stock options plans 1,053 1,386 253
Change in:
Trade receivables (492) (15,613) 9977
Inventories 6,604 (21,804) (23,836)
Income tax refund receivable 135 (207) 1,257
Prepald expenses and other current assets (646) 1,261 (1,555)
Other assets 42 (191} (250)
Accounts payable (10,355) 4,008 (2,722)
Accrued commissions (764) (482) {1.210)
Accrued warranty 407 1,854 1,811
Accrued payroll and related benefits {1,964) 1,348 2,340
Income taxes payable (3,036) 2,533 (2.230)
Other accrued liabilities 1,591 (1.580) 1,864
Customer advances (2,945) 3,568 (1.277)
Deferred profit 41 (2,262) {13,284)
Net cash provided by {used in) operaling activities 2928 (8,381) (9,625)
Investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securities - - (2,490)
Proceeds from sale and maluritiss of markelable securities - 475 8.004
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (8,726} (14,270) (6.429)
increasas in intangible assets (1,055) {1,300} {1.206)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,885 152 543
Net cash used in investing activities {7.896) (14.943) (1,578)
Financing activities:
Net proceeds from stock offering - 27,788 -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1177 1,274 349
Excess tax banefits received on the exercise of stock-based awards | 218 328 -
Borrowings under line of credit and short-term debt 20,538 82,778 -
Repayments of line of credit and short-term debt (23,647) (79,671) -
Bomrowings under long-term debt 6,466 2,075 1,314
Repayments of long-terr debt and capital leases {1.105) (375) (225)
Net cash provided by financing activities 3.647 34,198 1,438
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 64 (84) {46)
Nel increase (decraase) in cash and cash aquivalents (1.257) 10,780 (9,811)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 17,347 6,557 16,368
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16,090 $ 17,347 § 6,557
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SEMITOQOL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED
For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005
{Amounts in Thousands) :

2007 2006 2005
Supptemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 664 § 457 116
Income taxes 3,330 2,274 §,208
Supplemental disclosures of non-cash financing and invesling activity:
Inventory transferred to equipment $ 5732 % 3,747 6,906
Assets acquired by incurring debt and capital leases - 98 -
Intangible assets acquired with the sale of products - 914 -

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SEMITOOL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(Amounts in Thousands)

2007 2006 2005
Net income $ 5231 § 9836 § 10,050
Net gain {loss) on cash flow hedges (363} 61 224
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities - - 6
Foreign currency transiation adjustments 484 (179) {343)
Total comprehensive income 5 5352 § 9718 $ 9,947

The sccompanying notes are an integral pant of the consolideted financial statements.
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SEMITOOL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles:

Semitool, Inc. (Semitcot or the Company) designs, manufactures, installs and services highly-engineered equipment
for use in the fabrication of semiconductor devices. Semitool's products are focused on the wet chemical process
steps in integrated circuit, or IC, manutacturing and include systems for wafer surface preparation and
electrochemical deposition, or ECD, applications. The Company's surface preparation systems are designed for
Front End of Line (FEQL), Back End of Line (BEOL) and wafer level packaging of ICs procasses. Semitool's single
wafer FECL surface preparation systems are used for photoresist stripping, post etch and pre-diffusion cleans. The
Company's BEOL surface preparation systems are used for polymer removal and packaging applications.
Semitoo!'s ECD systems are used lo plate copper and other metals, which are used for the IC's intermal wiring, or
interconnecls; to plate solder and lead free solder bumps for wafer level packaging applications; and to plate other
metals for various semiconductor and related applications. Also, the Company's surface preparation systems ara
used for cleaning and etching processes for wafer level packaging. Semitool's primary product for all of these
processes is the Raider platform, which is a multichamber single wafer tool. The Company’s products address
critical applications within the semiconductor manufacturing process, and help enable Semitool's customers to
manufacture more advanced semiconductor devices that feature higher levels of performance. The fabrication of
semiconductor devices typicaily requires several hundred manufacturing steps, with the number of steps continuing
to increase for advanced devices.

Significant accounting policies followed by the Company are:

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statemants include the accounts of Semitoo! and its wholly-cwned subsidiaries: Semitool
Austria GmbH, Semitool Europe Ltd., (United Kingdom); Semilcol Halbleilertechnik Vertriebs GmbH, (Germanyy),
Semitool France SARL; Semilool Israel Ltd.; Semitool ltalia SRL; Semitocl Japan inc.; Semitoo) Korea, Inc.;
Semitool (Asia) Pte LId., (Singapore); Semitool Semiconductor Equipment Technology (Shanghai) Co., LTD.;
Semitool (Taiwan) Inc.; and Rhetech, Inc.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation,
Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemenls in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires the Company 1o make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, labilities, ravenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent liabililies. On an on-
going basis, the Company evaluates its estimales, including those related to revanue recognition, bad debts,
inventories, investments, intangible assets, income laxes, financing operations, warranty obligations, employee
benefits, contingencies and litigation. The Company bases ils estimates on historical experience and on various
other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual resuts may differ from these eslimates under different assumplions or conditions.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original or purchased maturities of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. The Company invests its cash and cash eguivalents in deposits with major financial
institutions, which, at times, exceed federally insured timits. The Company has not experienced any losses on ils
cash and cash equivalents.

Trade Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Trade raceivables are recorded at the invoice amount and do not bear interest. Past due accounts are delermined
based on contractual terms. The Company maintains allowances for doubtul accounts for estimated losses

resulling from the Inability of its customers to make required payments based on its experience and knowledge of
the current financial condition of its customers.
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Derivatives

The Company uses derivative instruments lo manage soma of ils exposures 1o foreign cusrency risks. The
objeclive for holding derivatives is to minimize these risks using the most effective methods to eliminate or reduce
the impact of these exposures. The Company uses cash flow hedge accounting in accordance wilh SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting For Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” lo account for hedges. Al the inception of the
hedge, the hedging relationship to a forecasted transaction, the risk management objective and the strategy for
undertaking the hedge is documented. Quarterly, forward rates are used to evaluate hedging effectiveness. For
effactive hedges, unrealized gains and losses are included In accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
(OCi). 'f the derivative no longer meets hedge accounting criteria, or the terms of the hedged item change so the
derivative no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, the derivative is marked-to-market. Any amounts in OCI relating
to a derivative that no longer qualifies for hedge accounting are transferred out of OCI and reported in earnings
during the period in which hedge accounting no longer applies. At maturity or termination the gain or loss on the
derivative is calculated and reported in eamings.

Cerlain forecasted lransactions and assels are exposed lo foreign currency risk. The Company monitors foreign
currency exposures regularly to maximize the overall effectiveness of the foreign currency hedge positions. The
only currency hedged is the Japanese Yen. Forward cantracis used to hedge forecasted internalional sales on
credit for up 1o 18 months in the future are designated as cash flow hedging instruments. Derivative gains and
losses included in OCI are reclassified when forecasted transactions become receivables. During the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, the amount transferred from OCI to Other income {expense) was not
material. The Company estimates lhat all $182,000 of net derivative losses, curently reported as a separale
component of OCI, will be reclassified into e@arnings within the next 12 months.

All derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are recordad on the balance sheet al fair value.
If the derivative is designated a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and of the hedged
item attributable to the hedgad risk are recognized in earnings. If the derivalive is designated as a cash flow hedge,
the effective portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in OCl and are recognized in
earnings when the cash flow hedge ceases.

Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized in eamings. Hedge
ineffectiveness, determined in accordance with SFAS No. 133, had no impact on earnings for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Inventories
invenlories are carriad at the lower of first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost or market. The Company periodically reviews its
inventories to identify excess and obsolete inventories and to record such inventories at nel realizable values. Itis

raasonably possible that the Company's estimates of net realizable values could be revised in the near term due to
technological and other changes.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is slated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization are
provided using the siraight-line method with estimated usefu) lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Machinery and equipment 2-5 ypars
Furniture and fixtures 3-7 years
Vehicles and aircraft 5-10 yaars
Leasehold improvements The useful life of the improvement

Maijor additions and betterments are capitalized. Costs of maintenance and repairs which do not improve or extend
the lives of the respective assels are expensed when incurred. When items are disposed, lhe related costs and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is recognized.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets whenaver events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of the assel may be impaired in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” An impairment loss s recognized when
estimated future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset including disposition, are less than the
carrying vatue of the asssl.

intangible Assets

Intangible assets primarily include legal costs associated with obtaining patents. The cost of granted patents is
amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the estimated economic {ifé or seven years.
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Revenue Recognition

In December 1999, the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No.
101 {SAB 101), "Ravenue Recognition in Financial Statements,” which has been subsequently updated by Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (SAB 104), "Revenus Recognition.” Under this method, revenue is recognized only
when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exisis, dellvery has occurred or services have been rendered, the
seller's price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. The Company’s product sales
generally contain substantive customer acceptance provisions. Sales of new products to new or existing customers
are not recognized until customer acceptance. Likewise, sales of existing products to new customer environments
are not recognized until customer accaptance. if multiple elements exist, sales of existing products into existing
customer environments are treated as such in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-21,
“Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” The amount of revenue recognized in multiple
element arangements is the lesser of the fair vaiue of the equipment or the contracted amount that was due or
payable upon litle transfer. The revenue for elements other than equipment is recorded in deferred profit and is
recognized when the remaining geods and/or services are delivered or performed. Revenue related to service is
recognized upon completion of performance of the service or ratably over the life of the related service contracl.
Spare parts sales are recognized upon shipment when title and risk of loss pass to the customer.

Deferred profit included in current liabilities is derived from deferred revenue, which primarily relates to equipment
shipped o customers that has not been accepted by the customer, less the deferred cost of sales, including
warranty and installation, and commission expenses.

Semitool's shipping terms are customarily FOB Semitoo! shipping point or equivalent terms. All sales, use, value
added, excise or other taxes imposed by a governmental authority on customer sales are presented on a net basis,
that is, excluded from revenues.

Warranty Obligations

The Company's obligations for wamranty are accrued concurrently with the revenue recognized on the related
equipment. The Company makes provisions for its wamanty obligations based upon historical costs tncurred for
such obligations adjusted, as necessary, for curren! conditions and factors. Due to the significant uncertainties and
judgments invelved in estimaling the Company's warranty obligations, including changing product designs and
spacifications, the ultimate amount incurred for warranty costs could change in the near term from the Company’s
current estimate.

Forelgn Currency

The funclional currency for most of the Company's foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. Dollar. For these foreign
operations, realized gains and losses from foreign currency transactions and unrealized gains and losses from re-
measurement of the financial statements of the foreign operations into the functiona! currency are included in the
Consolidated Statemenis of Income.

Semitoo! Japan uses the Yen as its functional currency and invoices its customers in Yen. All assets and liabilities of
Sermitool Japan are translated at period-end exchange rates and all revenues and expenses are re-measured al
average rates prevalling during the period. Transiation adjustments are reported as a separate component of OCI.
Transaction gains and losses are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Beginning in April 2007, due to a change in how the Company conducts business and following an evaluation of the
scope of Its operations and business practices, the Company concluded that the Euro is the currency of the primary
aconomic environmeant in which Semitool Austria operates and consequently, changed the functional currency for
Semitool Aystria lo the Euro. Semitool Austria invoices its customers in Euros and its financing and operating
activities are denominated in the Euro. Accordingly, from April 1, 2007, all assets and liabilities of Semitoo! Austria
are translated at period-end exchange rates and afl revenues and expensas are re-measured at average rates
pravailing during the period. Translation adjustments are reported as a separate companent of OCI. Transaction
gains and losses are included in the Consolidated Statements of Incoms.

Transaction gains of $625,000, $33,000 and $110,000 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 related to cash flow hedges
and their underlying receivables are included in other income {expense} in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Research and Davelopment Costs
Research and Development (R&D) expense consists of salaries, project materials, laboralory costs, consulting fess

and other cosls associated with product development eforts. Costs of research and development are expensed as
incurred.
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Stock-Basoed Compensation

Effective October 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of Statemenl of Financial Accounting Standards
{SFAS) No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” SFAS No. 123(R) establishes accounting for stock-based awards
exchanged for employee services. Accordingly, stock-based compensation cost is measured at grant date, based on
the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense, amortized on a straight-line basis, over the requisite
service pariod of the individual grants, which generally equals the vesling period.

The Company elected to adopt the modified prospeclive application method as provided by SFAS No, 123(R). As a
result, the Company’s Consolidated Statemenits of Income as of Seplember 30, 2007 and 2006 reflect
compensation cost for new slock awards granted under the stock incantive plans during fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006
and the nenvested portion of previous stock option grants which vested during fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006. Total
compansation cosl recorded in fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, respectively, was $1.1 million and $1.4 million pre-tax, or
$1.1 million and $940,000 after tax, an impact of approximately $0.03 per basic and diluted share in both periods.

The Company elected lo adopt the alternalive transition method provided in the FASB Staff Position No. FAS
123(R)-3, “Transition Election Relaled lo Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards” for
calculating the tax effects of stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS No. 123(R). The alternative transition
method includes computational guidance to establish the beginning balance of the addilional paid-in capital pool
(APIC Pool) related to the tax eflacts of employee stock-based compensation awards that are vested and
outstanding upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R}, the Company accounted for stock-based employese compensation using
the intrinsic value method under Accounting Principles Board Opinlon No. 25, *Accounling for Stock Issued to
Employees” {APB No. 25) and had adopted the disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Campensation” (SFAS No. 123) as amended by SFAS No. 148,
*Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure® (SFAS No. 148). APB No. 25 provided that
compensation expensa relative 1o employee stock options be measured based on the intrinsic value of the stock
options granted. Compensation expense was recognized in the statement of income in the case where the stock
options were granted at exercise prices below fair market value on the date of grant. The Company amortized
deferred stock-based compensation cost on the accelerated vesting method described in FASB Interpretation
Number 28, "Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans - an
Interpretation of APB Opinions No. 15 and 25" over the vesting pericds of the applicable stock options {normally five
years). If the stock options were granted at market value, no compensation expense was recorded. SFAS No. 123
provided for a fair value based methad of accounting for an employee stock option. For stock options, fair value is
determined using an oplion pricing model that takes into account the stock price at the grant date, the exercise
prica, the expected life of Ine option, the volatility of the underlying stock and the expected dividends on it, and the
risk-free rate over the expacted life of the option. SFAS No. 123 required entities that continued to use the intrinsic
value based mathad of accounting prescribed by APB No. 25 to provide pro forma disclosures of net income and
earnings per share as If the fair value method of accounting had been used. SFAS No. 148 required prominent
disclosure of the methed used to vatue options and the effect of the method used on reported resulls in both annual
and interim financial statements. The pro forma Information for fiscal 2005 was as follows (in thousands, except per
share amounts}:

2005

Nel income, as reported $ 10,050
Add: Compensation expense recorded

under APB No. 25, net of tax related effects 175
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for

all awards, net of tax refated effects (843)
Pro forma net income $ 9,382
Basic earnings per share:

As reported $ 0.356

Pro forma 5 0.23
Diluted earnings per share:

As reported $ 0.35

Pro forma $ 0.32
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Computation of Earnings Per Share

The computation of basic and diluted eamnings per share is based on the foliowing (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005

Numerator:

Net income used for basic and diluted

eamings per share 3 5231 % 9836 $ 10,050
Denominator:

Weighted average common shares used for

basic earnings per share 32,004 31,174 28,709

Effects of dilutive stock options 416 344 ar?
Denominator for dituted eamnings per share 32,450 31,518 29,086

Diluted eamings per share excludes lhe effects of antidilutive stock options to purchase 577,719, 209,575, and
403,350 shares of common stock in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48, *Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an Interpretation of FASB Stalement 109." (FIN 48) which dlarifies the accounting for
uncariain tax positions. FIN 48 provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position be recognized in the
Company's financial statements, only if the position is more fikely than not of being sustained cn audil, based on the
technical merits of the position. The provisians of FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006, Accordingly, the Company will adopt FIN 48 in fiscal 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact
of adopting FIN 4B on its results of operations and financial condition,

In September 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, *Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 clarifies the
definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles
and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting
pronouncements that require or permil fair value measurements. On November 14, 2007, the FASB deferred the
effective date of SFAS No. 157 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities, to fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2008 and interim periods within thosa fiscal years. Accordingly, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 157 in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this statement will have on ils resulls of
operations and financial condition.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assats and Financial
Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No. 159 allows entities to choose, at
spacified election dates, to measure efigible financial instruments and carlaln other ilems at fair value that are not
otherwise required to be so measured. If a company elects the fair value oplion for an eligible item, changes in thal
item's fair valug in subsequent reporting periods must be recognized in current eamings. SFAS 159 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Accerdingly the Company will adopt SFAS 159 in fiscal 2009. The
Company is currenlly evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS 159 on its rasults of operations and financial
condition.

Inventories:

Inventories at September 30, 2007 and 2006 are summatized as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006
Parts and raw materials $ 44441 § 47793
Work-in-process 23,280 33.878
Finished gocds 10,296 8,488

$ 78,017 $ 90,159
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Propeny, plant and equipment at September 30, 2007 and 2006 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006
Buildings and improvements $ 31950 $ 30,176
Machinery and equipment 46,926 38,550
Fumiture, fixtures and leasehold improvements 10,534 10,563
Vehicles and aircraft 10,091 8724

99,501 89,013
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (55,237) {48,838)

44,264 40,175
Land and land improvements 4,884 4,435

$ 49148 § 44,610

Deprecialion expense was $9,785,000, $8,904,000, and $6,694,000 for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respeclively.

4. Intangible Assets:

Amortization expense for intanglble assets was $936,000, $811,000, and $549,000 for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Based primarily on patent rights granted and recorded at September 30, 2007, and assuming no
subsequent impairment of the underlying assets, the annual estimated amoniization expense is expected to be as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ending
September 30, Total
2008 31,011
2009 928
2010 782
2011 583
2012 329
Thereafter 221

Accumulated amorlization was $3,279,000 and $2,390,000 a! September 30, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

5. Note Payable to Bank:

Tha Company has a 330 million Credit Agreement, renewable annually, with a bank with an expiration date of March 1,
2009. Borrowings are collateralized by certain assets of the Company and bear interesi at the bank’s prime lending
rate, 7.75% as of September 30, 2007, or at our option, LIBOR plus 2.25%, or 7.37% as of tha! date. The agreement
requires monthly interest payments only, until March 1, 2009, when the then outstanding principal balance is due and
payable in full. The original agreement provided for a non-ulilization fee payable quarterly al a rate of 0.30% per annum
on the average daily amouni of the unused portion of the overall cradit limit for each such year, and the amended
agreement provides for a non-refundable annual commitment fee equal to 0.10% of the credil limit, commencing March
1, 2008. Additionally, the agreement contains various restrictive financial and non-financial covenants. The financial
covenanis include measurements of tangible net worth, total liabilities divided by tangible net worth, pre-tax profit and a
maximum borrowing limit based upon total accounts receivable. The Company was in compliance with its debt
covenants as of September 30, 2007, Al September 30, 2007, there were no advances outslanding on the agreement.
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6.

Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases:

Long-term dabt and capila! leasas at September 30, 2007 and September 30, 2006 are summarized as follows (in
thousands):

2007 2006

Mortgage term note payable in monthly instaliments of
$23, including interest at a blended rate of 5.5%, matuting on
September 1, 2014. (A) $ 1,524 § 1.710

Mortgage term nole payable in monthly instaliments of $49
including interest at a blended rate of 3.81% up to Jan 2012
when it will change to $53 including interest at a blended rate of
6.81%, maturing on January 2017. (B) 4,629 -

Mortgage term noie payable (o the Pennsylvania Industrial
Development Authority (PIDA) in monthly Instailments of $6,
including interest at 4.25%, maturing on December 1, 2008. (C) 78 142

Mortgage term note payable to Sovereign Bank in monthly
installments of $6 including interest at 4.5%, maturing
August 15, 2021. (D) 1,804 286

Mortgage term note payable to the Raiffeisenbank Hallein
in monthly instaliments of EUR 11 (US $13),
including interest at 3.5%, maturing on March 5, 2016. (E} 3,093 3,034

Capital lease obligation payable in monthly installments
of EUR 3 (US $4) including interest at 4.25% with an original
maturily date of June 1, 2008. Collateralized by equipment with a
net book value of $136. 57 98
11,185 5,270
Less curment portion 1,158 571

$§ 10027 § 4,699

{A} The mortgage term note payable is collateralized by a first lien deed of trust on the Kalispelt office and
manufacturing facility and by all fixtures and personal property of the Company necessary for the operation of
the facifity. The Montana State Board of Investments provided 80% of the financing with Bank of America
providing the remaining 20%. The notes are personally guaranteed by Raymoen F. Thampson, the Company’s
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

(B) The morigage term nate payable is collaleralized by a first lien deed of trust on the manufacturing facility located
at Birch Grove Road in Kalispell, Montana and by al fixtures and personal property of the Company necessary
far the operation of the facility. The Montana State Board of Investments provided 75% of the financing wilh
First Interstate Bank providing the remaining 25%.

{C)The mortgage term nole payable to PIDA Is collateralized by a first lien upon the premises in Coopersburg,
Pennsylvania upon which the Rhetech, Inc. office and manutacturing facility resides. The net book value of
assets pledged under the agreement was $4.5 million at September 30, 2007, $2.4 million at September 30,
2006 and $2.0 million at September 30, 2005.

{D) The mortgage term note payable to Sovereign Bank for the expansion of the Rhetech, Inc. manufacturing facility
is collateralized by a second lien upon the premises in Coopersburg, Pennsylvania by Lehigh County Industrial
Davelopment Authority and guaranteed by Semitool, Inc.

(E) The morigage term note payable to Raiffeisenbank Hallein is collateralized by a lien on the Satzburg, Austria
premises.




Principal maturities for long-term debt and capital leases at September 30, 2007, are summarized as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ending Notes Capital
September 30, Payable Leases
2008 $ 1,101 $ 57
2009 1,089 -
2010 1,122 -
2011 1,169 -
2012 1,196 -
Thereafter __ 5451 -

£11,128 .57

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:

The Company's accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of unrealized losses on cash flow hedges and foreign
currency translation adjustments resulting from translating both Semitool Japan’s financiat statements from the
Japanese Yen and Semitool Austria’s financial statemenls from the Euro, to the U.S. Dollar.

Accumulated other comprehensiva loss at September 30, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following components (in
thousands):

2007 2006
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments qualifying as cash flow hedges  § {182) % 181
Cumulative translation adjustments {310} (794)

$ {492) $ (613)

Empioyee Benefit and Stock Option Plans:

Semitool maintains a profit-sharing plan and trust under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, Under the terms
of the plan, U.S. employees may make voluntary contributions to the plan. Semitool contributes a matching amount
equal to 50% of the employee's voluntary contribution for up to 5% of the employee's compensation. Semitool may also
make non-matching contributions to the plan, Total contribution cost for this plan was approximately $1.1 miltion, $1.0
millilon and $785,000 for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivaly.

Semitool Europe Ltd. maintains a defined contribution pension agreement. This pension agreement is open to all
employaes with more than three months of service. The employer and employee contributions are invested in each
individual member's personal pension plan. The employer has an obligation to make contributions at one-half of the
contribution rate paid by the employee, subject to a rate between 2.5% and 5.0% of the employee’s salary. The tota!
pansion cost for this plan for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 approximated $40,000, $38,000 and
$51,000, respectively.

The Company's other foreign subsidiaries do not oparate their gwn pension plans, but retirement benefils are generally
provided to employees through government plans operated in their respective counltries,

In February 2004, the Board of Directors adopted and the shareholders approved the 2004 Stock Option Plan (the 2004
Plan), replacing the expiring 1994 Stock Option Plan. Upon approval of the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2007 Plan)
in March 2007, the 2007 Plan immediately replaced the 2004 Plan. Options that were granted under the 2004 Plan
generally become exercisable at a rate of 5% per quarter commencing three months after the grant date and have a
requisite service period of five years. The Company has granted options that qualify as incentive stock options to
employess {including officers and employee directors) and nonqualified stock options to employees, directors and
consultants. The oplicns generally have a ten-year term, unless earlier terminated by the discontinuation of service by
the grantee. Oplion exercises are settled with newly issued common shares.
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The total shares reserved for issuance under the 2007 Ptan are 3,381,700 at September 30, 2007, which includes an
initial 1,000,000 shares plus alt shares that remained available for grants of options under the 2004 Plan as of the dale
the 2007 Plan was approved plus any sharas that would otherwise return to the 2004 Pilan as a result of forfeiture of
options previously granied under the 2004 Plan. The 2007 Plan provides for the grant of various awards including stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, and stock appreciation rights. As of September 30, 2007, only stock
options and restricted stock have been awarded. The Company may grant options that qualify as incentive stock
options only to employees. Awards other than incentive stock options may be granted to employees, dirsctors and
consultants. Awards granted under the 2007 Plan generally vest at a rate of 20% per year with 20% vesting
immediately upon issuance and have a requisite service period of four years. Stock oplions generally have a ten-year
term, unless earlier terminated by the discontinuation of service by the grantee. Stock option exercises and restricted
stock are settled with newly issued common shares.

The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
Expected volatililias are based on a blended rate of historical and impliad volatilities from the traded options on the
Company's stock. The expected term of stock oplions granted is based on anatyses of historical employee termination
rates, option exercises and other factors. The risk-lres ratas are based on the U.S. Treasury yield in effect at the time of
the grant, The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes medel are presented below:

2007 2006 2005
Expected stock price volatility 51.6% 59.6% 80.0%
Risk-free interest rate 4.6% 4.6% 9%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected life of options (in years} 5.1 52 46

The weighted average grant date fair values based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model for stock options granted
in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2005 were $5.58, $4.86 and $5.29 per share, respectively.

The following summary shows stock option aclivity for the three years ended September 30, 2007

2007 2006 2005

Weighted Weighted Waeightad

Average Average Averagoe

Exercise Exercise Exercise
Stock Option Activity Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning of yaar 1,922,426 $7.53 1,983,305 $7.36 1,634,925 $7.08
Granted 62,000 $11.05 142,500 $8.78 439,700 $8.21
Exercised {169,676) $6.94 (192,004} $6.64 {64.420) $5.42
Forfeited 535‘000) $8.85 {1 I3?5) $7.89 {26.900) $9.00
Qutstanding, end of year 1,779,750 $7.69 1,922,426 $7.53 1,983,305 $7.36
Exercisable, end of year 1,246,956 $7.52 1,167,366 $7.50 1,078,105 $7.35

As of September 30, 2007, $2.1 mitlion of tola! unrecognized compensation cosi related to non-vested stock options is
expected 10 be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years. The weighted average remaining contractual
term for options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2007 was 5.4 years and 4.4 years, respectively. The
aggregate intrinsic value for options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2007 was $4.1 million and $3.1
million, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$900,000, $1.0 million and $230,000, respectively,

The Company granted a total of 62,000 stock options during fiscal 2007 with exercise prices equal to the market price of
the stock on the grant date. The weighted-average exercise price and weighted-average fair market value of these
awards were $11.05 and $5.58, respectively. Compsnsation expense recognized during fiscal 2007 under SFAS No.
123(R) was $1.1 million, All stock options issued in fiscal 2007 were issuad at the then-cumrenl market prics.
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The Company grantad a total of 142,500 stock options during fiscal 2006 with exercise prices equal to the market price
of lhe stock on the grant date. The weighted-average exercise price and weighled-average fair market value of these
awards were $8.78 and $4.86, respectively. Compensation expense recognized during fiscal 2006 under SFAS No.
123(R) was $1.4 million. All stock options issued in fiscal 2007 were issued at the then-current markel price,

The Company granted a total of 286,500 stock options during fiscal 2005 with exercise prices equal to the market price
of the stock on the grant date. The weighted-average exercise price and weighted-average fair value of these awards
wore $8.22 and $5.27, respectively. The Company granted a {otal of 153,200 stock options during fiscal 2005 with
axercise prices less than the market price of the stock on the grant date and recognized compensation expense of
$253,000 pre-tax or $175,000 after tax on those options. The weighted-average exercise price and weighted-average
fair value of these awards were $8.20 and $5.33, respeclively. The Company did not grant stock options during fiscal
2005 with exercise prices greater than the market price of the stock on the grant date.

The following table summarizes information about stock options cutstanding at September 30, 2007:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Average Weighted Average Average
Number Exercise Remaining Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices of Shares Prce Contractual Life of Shares Price
(In years)
$ 328 - %488 319,090 $4.12 53 260,260 $4.10
$ 594 - $8.73 1,004,085 $7.47 51 679,520 $7.32
$ 9.06 - $13.59 416,925 $10.20 6.3 276,026 $10.25
$13.73 - $19.25 39,650 $15.69 52 31,150 $16.22
1 .779,750 $7.69 54 1 l248.956 ) $7.52

The exercise and sale of certain qualified options resulted in the treatment of those options as nonqualified options for
tax purposes. As a result, the Company received tax benefits associated with those options of $247.000, $427,000 and
$29,000 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respeclively, which were recorded as additional capital.

A summary of the Company’s restricted stock activity for fiscal 2007 is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
(In thousands)

Nonvested at Seplember 30, 2006 - 5 -
Restricted stock granted 13 5.68
Restricted stock vested (1) 10.04
Restricted stock forfeited - -

Nonvested al September 30, 2007 12 $9.64

The fair value of the restricted stock was calcutated based upon the fair market value of the Company's stock at the
date of the grant, As of September 30, 2007, $100,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted
stock awards is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.1 years.
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9. Downsizing Costs:

in April 2007, the Company announced and implemented a plan to align its cost structure with current business activity
levels. The cost reduction plan censisted primarily of a seven percent reduction in the Company's worldwids work force,
management pay cuts, reduced overtime and mandalory leave. One-time involuntary termination costs of $677,000
were reported as a separate component of operating expenses in the Company’s fiscal third quarter. All costs related to
the downsizing plan have been fully incumed and paid. The Company’s downsizing costs and the amount remaining to
be paid are summarized as follows (in thousands);

Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2007

Liability for one-time involuntary termination costs, beginning of period $ -
Cne-lime involuntary tarmination costs incurred during the period 677
One-time involuntary termination costs paid during the period (677)
Liability for one-time involuntary termination costs, end of peried $ —

10. Other Income (Expense):

Other, net for fiscal 2005 includes a $2.9 million sead layer enhancement litigation settlement payment received from
Novelius Systems, Inc. in October 2004,

11. Income Taxes:

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended Saptember 30, 2007, 2008 and 2005 consists of the
following (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005

Federal:

Current $ (1083) $ 4977 % 244

Deferred (1,689} {1,863) 1,547
State:

Current 638 282 47

Deferred (702) (78) 168
Foreign:

Curreni 873 1,556 2,047

Deferred 71 {57) 104

$  (1.892) § 4817 $ 4457

Domestic and foreign components of income (loss) before income taxes for the years ended Seplember 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Domestic $ (1681) $ 10217 $ 8,468
Foreign 5020 4,436 6,039

$ 3339 % 14653 $ 14,507
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The components of the deferred tax assels and liabilities as of September 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows {in
thousands);

2007 2006

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued warranty 3 2223 $ 2,209

Net operating loss carryforwards 255 255

Tax credit carryforwards 3,446 172

Deferred profil 2,770 4,441

Other accrued liabilitios 1,509 1,725

Inventories 2,392 1,810

Other 706 656
Deferred tax assets 13,31 11,268
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation and amortization (2,828) {3,123)

Other 9 -
Deferred tax liabilities (2.837) (3,123}
Net deferred lax asset $ 10454 3 8,145

Semitoo! has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $12 million in various stales. The Company estimates
the tax effect of these net operating losses to be approximately $255,000, The losses expire in fiscal years 2008
through 2023. Semitool has a research and experimentation credit carryforward in the State of Montana of
approximately $762,000, which will expire by fiscal year 2022. Semitoo| has a Federal research and experimentation
credit carryforward of approximately $1.5 million which will expire by fiscal year 2022, The Company also has an
Alternative Minimum Tax credit cammyforward of approximately $731,000 thal does not expire and a Foreign Tax Credil
carryforward of approximately $470,000 which will expire by fiscal year 2017,

Curulative undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries, for which no U.S. income or foreign withholding taxes have
been recorded, were approximately $20.8 million at September 30, 2007. Such earnings are expected to be reinvested
indefinitely. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability wilh respect to such earnings is no!
practicable. The additional taxes payable on the earnings of foreign subsidiaries, if remitted, would be substantially
offset by U.S. tax credits for foreign taxes already paid.

Semitool has concluded that based on their history of taxable income and other sources of fulure income, thal it is more
likely than not that all of the deferred tax assets will be realized and that no valuation allowance is nacessary at this
time.

The differences between the consolidated provision (benefit) for income taxes and income taxes compuled using
income before income taxes and the U.S. federal income tax rate for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and
2005 are as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Amount compuled using the statutory rate $ 1,169 $ 5129 § 5,077
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal benefit (173) 228 29
Effact of foreign laxes/foraign exchange (1,003) (179) (151)
Research and experimentation credit {2,388} {304) {1.033)
Meals and enterlainment and other permanent items 777 450 n
Extraterritorial income exclusion (520} (528) (574)
Incentive stock options 222 204 -
Domestic production deduction - {155) -
Subpart F income net of related foreign tax credit 20 152 542
Cither, net 4 (179) {8)

$ (1,892) § 4817 $ 4457

The Research and Experimentation Credit (Credit) expired on June 30, 2004. Legisfation extending (he Cradit was not
signed into law by September 30, 2004, Therefare, lhe Company was unable to recognize approximately $186,000 of
the Credit generated in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 unti! the first quarter of fiscal 2005 when the Credit was again
reenacted. Additionally, no Credil was recognized in the last nine months of fiscal 2006 as the extension expired on
December 31, 2005. Legislation extending the Credit was signed into law during Q1 of fiscal 2007. Therefore the
Caompany was unable to recognize approximately $843,000 of credit in fiscal 2006 until fiscal 2007,
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13.

Related Party Transactions:

Semitool has agreements with limited liability companies wholly-owned by Mr. Raymon F, Thompseon, the Company’s
chairman and chief executive officer, to lease aircrafl and an aircraft hangar. Under these agreements, rent expense
was approximately $2,839,200 for the year ended September 30, 2007 and $3,289,200 in each of the years ended
September 30, 2006 and 2005. The rental rate for fiscal 2008 is antigipated to be $199,100 per month for both the
aircrafl and the hangar; the lease lerms are month-to-month.

During the fiscal years 2005 through 2007, the Company acted as a s&les represemative to Starview Technology, Inc.,
a provider of manufacturing scftware for the semiconductor industry in which Mr. Thompson, the Company’s chairman
and chief execulive officer and his son-in-law, Thomas Sulzbacher, are majority shareholders. The Company earmed
sales commissions in the amount of $156,000 in fiscal 2007.

In December 2004, the Company sold a condominium located in Kalispell, Montana to Larry E. Murphy, its president
and chief operating officer, for $250,000 in cash. The condominium had previously been used to provide shor-lerm
housing to employees who were not located in the Kalispell area. The terms were negotiated with Mr. Murphy based on
the estimated current market value of the condominium,

Commitments and Contingencies:

The Company, in its Articles of Incorporation, has indemnified its officers and the members of its Board of Direclors to
the extent permitted by law against any and all liabilities, costs, expensaes, amounts paid in settlement and damages
incurred in such capacily as a resul! of any lawsuit, or any judicial, administrative or invesligative proceeding in which
the officers or directors are named.

The Company has entered into agreements with customers that include limited intelleciual property indemnification
obligations that are customary in the industry. These guaranteas generally require the Company to compensale the
other party for certain damages end costs incurred as a result of third party intellectua! property claims arising from
these transaclions. The nature of the intellectual property indemnification obligations prevents the Company from
making a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount it could be required to pay to its customers. The
Company has not made any indemnification payments under such agreements and no amourtt has been accrued in the
accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements with respect to these indemnification cbligations.

Product Warranlies

Obligations for warrantias are accrued concurrently with the revenue recognized on the related equipment. Provisions
for warranty obligations are made based upon historical costs incurred for such obligations adjusted, as necessary, for
current conditions and factors. Due 10 the significant uncertainties and judgments involved in estimating warranty
obligations, including changing product designs and specificalions, the ultimate amount incurred for warranty costs
could change in the near term from the Company’s current estimate.

Changes in the Company's accrued warranty liability, for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, were as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
2007 2006 2005
Accrued warranty balance, beginning of year 5 7,368 % 5521 § 3.713
Accruals for new warranties issued during the year 9,238 11,919 9,567
Expirations and changes in estimates to pre-existing
warranties 2,876 1,068 (1.032)
Warranty labor and materials provided during the year {11,701) {11,140) {6,727}

Accrued warranty balance, end of year $ 7.781 & 7368 § 5,521
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15.

Operating Loases

The Company has various non-cancelable operaling lease agreements for equipment and office space thal expire
through the year 2014. Total rent expense for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2003, exclusive of
amounls paid to a related party as described in Nota 12, was approximately $1.9 million, $1.8 million and $1.8 million,
respectively. The following table summarizes future minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable operating
leases with initial or remaining lerms in excess of one year as of September 30, 2007 (in thousands):

Year Ending
Saptember 30, Total
2008 $ 1.0
2009 551
2010 297
2011 118
2012 112
Thereafler 1

3 2430

The Company is involved in legal proceedings that arise in the ardinary course of its business, including employment
related litigations. Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate disposition of these matters, it Is the opinion
of management, based upon the information available at this time, that the currently expected outcomse of these
matters. individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows,

Periodically, but not less Ihan quarterly, the Company reviews the status of each significant matter and assesses its
potential financial exposura, If the potential loss from any legal proceeding or claim is considered probable and the
amount can be reasonably estimated, the Company accrues a liability for the astimated loss. Significant judgment is
required in both the determination of probability and the determination as to whether an exposure is reasonably
estimable. Due to the uncertainties related to these matters, accruals are based on the best informalion avaitable at
the lime. As additional information becomes available, the Company reassesses the potential liability related to its
pending litigation and claims and may revise its esimates. Although the Company has nol made such revisions, any
future revisions could have a material impact on ils resulls of operations and financial condition.

Shareholders’ Equity:

The Board of Diractors has the authority 1o issue preferred stock of Semitool in one or mere series and (o fix the fights,
privileges, preferences and restrictions granted to or imposed upon any unissued shares of preferred stock, without
further vole or action by the common shareholders. At September 30, 2007 and 2006, no preferred shares were
outstanding.

In conjunction with an equity offering of common stock in December 2005, the Company issued three million shares of
gommon stock resulting in approximately $28.0 million in net cash proceeds.

Financial Instruments and Certain Concentrations:

The Company has estimated the fair value of its financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents and long-
term debt. The fair value estimates ara made al a discrete point in time based on relevant market information and
information about the financial instruments. Fair value eslimates are based on judgments regarding current aconomic
conditions. risk chatacteristics of various financia) Instruments, and other factors, These estimates are subjective in
nature and invelve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannol be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. Accordingly, the estimates are not
necessarily indicative of what the Company could realize in a current market exchange.

The following methods and assumplions were used lo estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument at
September 30, 2007 and 2006 for which it is practicable 10 estimate that value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the
nature of the cash investments.

Long-Term Debl - The fair vatue of notes payable is based on the discounted value of contractuat cash flows using
an estimated discount rate of 7.75% and 8.25% at September 30, 2007 and 20086, which the Campany coutd
currently obtain for debt with similar remaining maturities.
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16.

The estimated fair value of financial instruments at September 30, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following (in
thousands):

2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,080 3 16,090 § 17,347 § 17,347
Note payable to bank - - 3,109 3,109
Long-term debt 11,128 7,845 5,172 4,215

Al September 30, 2007 and 2006, trade receivables of the Company were primarily from companies in the
semiconductor industry, and included approximately $41.4 million and $41.0 million, respectively, of foreign receivables.
Accordingly, the Company is axposed lo concentrations of cradit risk. The Company routinely assesses the financial
strength of its customers,

Segments, Geographic Location and Major Customers:

The Company currently operates in one segment whose primary products perform wet processing. The Company’s
current product offerings qualify for aggregation under SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure About Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information” as its products are manufactured and distributed in the same manner, have similar economic
characteristics and are sold to the same customer base.

Advanced Micro Devices accounted for 23.8%, 13.8% and 16.7% of net sales in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Micron/IM Flash accounted for 10.2% of net sales in fiscal 2007.

Ne! sales infermation by geographic location for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 is summarized as fotlows (in thousands);

Year Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2005
Net sales, by customer location:

United States $ 80,646 3 91,157 § 51,893
Germany 67,739 41,860 37,233
Europe, excluding Germany 18,790 24731 17,442
Japan 16,488 16,563 24,363
Taiwan 15,812 26,672 43,199
Singapore 13,546 30,220 9,036
Asia and other, excluding Taiwan,

Singapore and Japan 4,199 11,915 7,207

3 215,220 $ 243218 $ 190,373

Property, plant and equipment information by geographic location for fiscal 2007 and 2006 Is summarized as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended September 30,
2007 2006
Property, plant and equipment, net:

United States % 39145 § 35,191
United Kingdom 4,055 4,201
Austria 5,189 4619
Other countries 758 589
3 49,148 % 44,610
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11.

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited):
For each quarter of fiscal 2007 and 2006 (in thousands, except for per share amounts):
Year Ended September 30, 2007
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Nel sales $ 67,965 3§ 53474 § 46,606 $ 47,175
Gross profit (1) $ 32765 $ 26381 § 22109 § 20236
Net income (loss) 3 5693 % 1,070 § 45) % {1487
Eamings (loss) per basic share $ 0.18 § 003 $ 000 $ (0.05)
Eamings (loss) per diluled share $ D18 § 003 $ 000 $ (0.05)
Year Ended September 30, 2006
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quartar Quarter
Net sales % 55,289 % 63,824 % 59,095 $ 65.010
Gross profit $ 24,008 $ 30,308 § 27640 § 30,962
Net income $ 63 § 3558 % 2351 % 3.064
Earnings per basic share $ 000 $ 011 $ 007 § 0.12
Earnings per diluted share $ 000 % 011 § 007 § 0.12

(1) In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we wrote down invenlory by approximately $3.0 million primarily due to produtt

enhancements that changed the usage of cerfain component parts, making them obsolete.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and
Sharehoiders of Semitool, Inc.

We have audited Ihe accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Semitool, Inc. (a Montana corporation) and subsidiaries
as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the relfated consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, cash flows,
and comprahensive income for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management, Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

Woe conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and pesform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evatualing the overall financial stalement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respecls, the financial
pasition of Semitool, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial slatements taken as a whole.
Schedule |l is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. This
schedule has been subjected to the audiling procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States),
the effectivensss of Semitool In¢.'s internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2007, based on criteria
established in Intemal Control—{nlegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COS0) and our report dated December 10, 2007 expressed an ungualified opinion,

/! GRANT THORNTON LLP

Sall Lake City, Utah
December 10, 2007




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED .PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Semitool, Inc.

We have audited Semitool, Inc. (a Montana Corporation} and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2007, based on criteria established in infemnal Control—integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of
Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0). Semitool, Inc. and subsidiaries’s management is
responsible for maintaining effsctive intemal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on (ntemal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Semitool, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

Woe conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we ptan and perform the audit ko obtain reasonable assurance about whether effeclive
intemnal contro! over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding
of internal control over financial raporting, assessing the risk that 8 malerial weakness exists, lesting and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procadures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding lhe
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal control over financial reporting includes thosa policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintanance of records that, in reasonabls detail, accurately and fairly reflect the trensactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that ransactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of lhe company are being made only in accordance wilh authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or limely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assats thal could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect missiatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that contrals may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Semitool, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all matenial respects, effective intemal control over financial
reporting as of September 30, 2007, based on criteria established in internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
COS0.

Woe also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated balance sheets of Semitood, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related
consolidated statemants of income, sharsholders' equity cash flows, and comprehensive income for years then ended and
our report dated December 10, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion.

s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Salt Lake City, Utah
December 10, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To The Board of Directors and Shareholders Semitoo, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive incoms, of changes in
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended September 30, 2005 present fairly, in all material respects, the resulls
of operations and cash flows of Semitool, Inc. and its subsidiaries for the year ended September 30, 2005, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America. In addilion, in our opinion, the financial statement
schedule for the year ended September 30 ,2005 listed in the index appearing under ltem 15(a)}{2) presents fairly, in all
malerial respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
slatements. These financial statements and financial statemenl schedule are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Qur responisibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these stalements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and parform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternerd. An audit includes examining,
on a tesi basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial stalements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
Wa believe thal our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Seattle, Washington
December 13, 2005
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item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None,

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. As of the end of the period covered by this report, Semitool
conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, of cur disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securitles Exchange
Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™)). Based on this evaluation, our principal execulive officer and principal financial officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed
by us In reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Acl is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time pericds specified in Securilies and Exchange Commission rules and forms and such information is accumulated
and communicated to management to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

{b} Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. The management of Semitool is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act. Semitool's internal control over financial reporting was designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the praparation of financial statements for externa) purposes
in accordanca with generally accepted accounting standards, Under the supervision and with the participation of
management, including our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Chie! Financial Cfiicer, we conducted an
assessment of the effectivenass of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2007. in making this
assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Commitiea of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission {COSQ) in intermal Control — Integrated Framework,

Based on our assessment using the criteria set forth by COSO in internal Control — Infegrated Framework,
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of September 30, 2007,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to fulure periods are subject fo the risk that controls may become
inadequale because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or proceduras may
deleriorate.

The effectivenass of the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2007 has been audited
by Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in ils repon, which appears herein.

(¢) Changes in Intarnal Control over Financial Reporting. There have not been any changes in our internal control over
financial reporting during our mosl recently completed fisca! quarter which have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially afiect, our internal control over financlal reporting.

ftern 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

(8) The information conceming our directors, our audit committee and our audit committee financial expert. is contained in
our Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with our 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and s incorporated herein
by referencs.

(b) Forinformalion with respect to executive officers, see Part |, Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, under
“Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

{c) The information concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
required under this item is contained in our Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with our 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders under the caption “Other Matters - Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance™ and is
Incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a code of business conduct for all of our employees and direclors, including our principal executive officer,
other execulive officars, principal financial officer and senior financial personnel. A copy of our code of business conduct is
available free of charge on our company Waeb site at www.semitool.com. We intend to post on our Web site any material
changes to, or waivers from our cods of business conduct, if any, within five business days of any such event.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information concerning compensation of exacutive officers and directors required under this item is contained in our
Proxy Statement to be fited in connection with our 2008 Annual Meeling of Shareholders under the caption “Executive
Compensation and Other Information™ and is incorporated hersin by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Relatad Shareholder
Matters

The information concerning certain principal holders of securities and security ownership of executive officers and directors
required under this item is contained in our Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with cur 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders under the caplion “Securily Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management™ and is incorporated
herain by reference.

Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plans as of September 30, 2007:

Number of securities
Number of aecurities Waighted-average romaining available
to be Issued upon exercise price for future Issuance
oxercise of of outstanding under stock option
outstanding options options plans
Equity compensation plans approved by
sharehotlders 1,779,750 $7.69 3,381,700

item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information concerning cenain relationships and relaled transactions required under this itern is contained in our Proxy
Staternent to be filed in connection with cur 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the caplion “Certain Transactions”
and is incorporated herein by referance.

item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
The information on principal accounting fees and services required under this item is contained in our Proxy Statement to be
filed in connection with our 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the captions “Audit Fees and Non-Audit Fees™ and

“Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services of the Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm™ and is incorporated harein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
{a) The following documents are filed as a pant of this report:
1. Financlal Statements:

The financial stalements and reports of independent registered public accounting firms listed below are set forth under
Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are incorporated herein by referanca:

Consolidated Balance Sheets
8! September 30, 2007 and September 30, 2006

Consolidated Statemants of Income
for the Years Ended September 30, 2007, September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
for the Years Ended September 30, 2007, September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the Years Ended September 30, 2007, September 30, 2008 and Seplember 30, 2005

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the Years Ended September 30, 2007, September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Repors ¢of Independent Ragistered Public Accounting Firms
2. Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule It - Valuatien and Qualifying Accounts
3. Exhibits;
{a) The exhibits fisted betow are filed as part of this Annua! Report on Form 10-K or are incorporated herein by reference:;

Exhibit No, Description
31 Restated Asticles of Incorporation of the Company (1)
38 Amendment to the Restated Arlicles of Incorporation of the Company (2) ,
KR:| Correction to the Amendment of the Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (2)
3.2 (i) Amended Bylaws of Semitoot, Inc. (3)
10.1 Semilool, Inc. 2004 Stock Option Plan {3) *
10.2110.3 Aircraft lease agreement, dated January 15, 2004, as amended by Amendment No 1, dated March 31, 2004,
between the Company and EAGLE ILLC (3)
10.4 Aircraft lease agreement, dated March 31, 2004, between the Company and EAGLE LI LLC (3)
10.12 Agreemeni between the Company and the Semitool Europsan Companies (1)
10.41 Employment Agreement betwean Larry A. Viano and the Company dated June 1, 2003 (4} *
10.42 Employment Agreement between Timothy C. Dodkin and the Company dated June 30, 2003 (4) *
10.43 Employment Agreemeni between Larry Murphy and the Company dated April 20, 2004 (5} *
10.44 AircraRt lease agreement, dated August 22, 2004, between the Company and EAGLE I LLC  (6)
1045 Credit Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2004, between the Company and
Wells Fargo HSBC Trade Bank, N.A. (6)
10.46 Loan Agreement, dated May 17, 2005, between Raiffeisenbank Hallein and
Semitool Austria, GmbH (7}
1047 First Amendment to Credit Agreement between Wells Fargo HSBC Trade Bank, N.A. and the Company,
dated December 6, 2005 (B)
10.48 Executive Bonus Plan for Larry E. Murphy, President and Chisf Operating Officer dated October 1, 2005 (9)
10.5 Supplemental Executiva Health Plan, dated February 15, 2006 (10}
10.6 Guaranty and Suretyship agreement dated August 15, 2006 (11)
10.7 Loan Agreemeant, dated August 15, 2006, between Sovereign Bank, Lehigh County Industrial Developmant
Authority and Rhetech, Inc. (12)
10.6 Term Loan Agreement betwean First Interstate Bank and the Company, dated December 29, 2006 (13)
109 Semitool 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (14)
10.91 Semitool 2007 Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement (14)
10.92 Semitool 2007 Stock Option Award Agreement (14)
10.93 Semitool 2007 Restricted Stock Bonus Award Agreement (Non-Employee Directors) (14}
10.94 Semiteol 2007 Restricted Stock Bonus Award Agreement (14)
10.95 Amendment No. 3 dated June 5, 2007 lo Aircraft Lease Agreemen! dated January 15, 2004 between
Eagle |, LLC and Semitool, Inc. {15)
1096 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement between Wells Fargo HSBC Trade Bank, N.A. and the Company,
dated September 1, 2007
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(12)
(13)
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(15}

Subsidiaries of Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - Grant Thornton LLP

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Certificalion of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Cartification of the Chief Financia! Officer pursuant to Seclion 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Centification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuanl to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbered exhibils to the Company's Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No, 33-87548), which became eflective on February 2, 1995.

Incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbered exhibit to the Company’s Quartery Report on Form 10-Q,
date of raport March 31, 2000.

Incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbered exhibit to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
date of report March 31, 2004,

Incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbered exhibil to the Company's Quarterty Repart on Form 10-Q,
date of report June 30, 2003.

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
date of report June 30, 2004,

Incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbered exhibit to the Company's Annual Raport on Form 10-K,
dale of report September 30, 2004,

Incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbered exhibit to the Company's Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q,
date of report June 30, 2005.

Incorporated herein by referencs to the identically numbered exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
date of report Decamber 6, 2005.

Incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbered exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
dale of report October 1, 2005.

Incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbaered exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
date of report February 15, 2006.

incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbered exhibit to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 8-K,
date of report August 15, 2006.

Incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbered exhibil to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K,
date of repori September 30, 2005.

incorporated herein by referance to the identically numbered exhibil to the Company's Quarterty Report on Form 8-K,
date of report December 29, 2006.

Incorporated herein by referencs to the identically numbered exhibit to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
date of report March 31, 2007.

incorporated herein by reference to the identically numbered exhibit to the Company's Quarterty Report on Form B-K,
dats of report June 5, 2007,

* Denotes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangament.

(b} Exhibits. The Exhibits listed in Item 15(a}(3){a) hereof are filod as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or are

incerporated herein by reference.

{c) Financial Statement Schedules. Ses ltem 15(a)(2) above,
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its bahalf by the undersigned, theraunto duly authorized.

Dated: December 13, 2007 SEMITOOL, INC.

By: [s/Raymon F, Thompson
Raymon F. Thompsen
Chairman of the Board and Chief Exacutive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

Is{Raymon F. Thompson

Raymon F. Thompson Chairman of the Board and December 13, 2007
Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

{silamy A Viang

Larry A, Viano Vice Presiden\, Chief Financial Officer December 13, 2007
and Treasurer
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

{s{Howard E. Bateman
Howard E, Bateman Director December 13, 2007

{siDonald P. Baumann
Donald P. Baumann Diractor December 13, 2007

{siC. Richard Deininger
C. Richard Deininger Diractor December 13, 2007

{sfTimothy C. Dodkin
Timothy C. Dodkin Director and Executive Vice President December 13, 2007

fs{Daniel J. Eigeman
Daniel J. Eigeman Director December 11, 2007

IsiCharles P. Grenier
Charles P. Grenier Director December 13, 2007

{s/Steven C. Stahlberg
Steven C. Stahiberg Director December 13, 2007
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Year ended September 30, 2007:
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventory allowance

Year ended September 30, 2008:
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounis
Inventory allowance

Year ended September 30, 2005:;
Deducted from assel accounts;
Allowancs for doubtful accounts
Inventory allowance

SEMITOOL, INC,

SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005

{Amounts in Thousands)

Additions

Balance at Charged to Charged Balance

Beglnning Costs and to Other at End
of Perlod Expenses Accounts Deductions of Period
$ 269 $ - $ - $ 10 $ 259
2,850 3662 - 3.215 3,297
270 - - 1 269
1,107 1,743 - - 2.850
21N - - 1 270
645 662 - 200 1,107
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Tel: 86 021 5835 5218

Japan

Semitoot Japan Inc.

2-15-10 Shin-Yokchama
Kouhoko-ku

Yokohame-shi Kanagawa

222-0033 Japan

Tel: 81 45 470 5340

Korea

Semitoo! Korea, Inc.

302 Banwol dldg. 342
Banwol-Dong

Hwaseong-5i Gyeonggi-Do

South Korea 445-330

Tel: 82 31 203 6877

Singapore

Semitool {Asia} Pte. Lid.
55 Newton Road

#02-01 Revenue House
Singapore 307987

Tel: 65 G484 8880

Taiwon

Semitoo! (Taiwan) Inc.
Hsinchu Office

2 F-2, Np.20, Taiyuan St.,
Jhubei City.

Hsinchu County 302,
Taiwan, R.0.C.

Tel: 886 03 552 6736

Tainan Office
3F-1, No. 139, Sanmin St,
Gangcian Village.
SinShih Township,
Tainan County 744,
Taiwan, R.O.C.
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SEMITOOL

Corporate Headquarters
655 West Reserve Drive
Kalispell, Mentana 59901
Tel: 406-752-2107
Fax: 406-752-5522

www,semitcol.com




